
Document Number: 1900564 

 
 
 
 

 
“Live” Broadcast via City Website www.cnv.org/LiveStreaming 

Complete Agenda Package available at www.cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 20, 2020 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, March 30, 2020 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Item *3 is listed in the Consent Agenda for consideration. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*3. Board in Brief – Metro Vancouver Regional District, March 27, 2020 
 
PRESENTATIONS  
 
COVID-19 Updates 
 

CNV Coordination – Director, Strategic and Corporate Services 
 

North Shore Emergency Operations Centre (Regional Response) – Fire Chief 
 

Scenario Planning and Impact Assessment – Director, Planning and Development 
 
Financial Plan 
 

2020 Financial Plan – Director, Finance 
 
REPORT 
 
4. 2020 Financial Plan 
 

Information Report, April 15, 2020 – “COVID-19 Impact on Financial Planning 
Process” 

 
  

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, 
IN THE CAO MEETING ROOM, CITY HALL, 
141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, APRIL 20, 2020 AT 6:00 PM



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 20, 2020 Page 2 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
CITY CLERK’S RECOMMENDATION 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed session, pursuant 
to the Community Charter, Section 90(1)(e) [land matter]. 

 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 20, 2020 Page 3 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 20, 2020 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, March 30, 2020  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Item *3 is listed in the Consent Agenda for consideration. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the recommendation listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*3. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, March 27, 2020 

– File: 01-0400-60-0006/2020 
 
 Re: Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the correspondence from Metro Vancouver, dated March 27, 2020, 
regarding the “Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief”, be received and filed. 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATIONS  
 
COVID-19 Updates 
 

CNV Coordination – Director, Strategic and Corporate Services 
 

North Shore Emergency Operations Centre (Regional Response) – Fire Chief 
 

Scenario Planning and Impact Assessment – Director, Planning and Development 
 
Financial Plan 
 

2020 Financial Plan – Director, Finance 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 20, 2020 Page 4 
 
REPORT 
 
4. 2020 Financial Plan – File: 05-1700-01-0001/2020 
 

Report: Director, Finance, April 14, 2020 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Finance, dated April 14, 2020, entitled 
“2020 Financial Plan”: 

 
THAT staff bring forward a Financial Plan Bylaw (2020 to 2029) that reflects an 
overall tax rate increase of 2.00%, which includes 2.00% for the Program Plan 
(operating), 0% for Infrastructure Reserves and 0% for New Items. 

 
Information Report, April 15, 2020 – “COVID-19 Impact on Financial Planning 
Process” 

 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
CITY CLERK’S RECOMMENDATION 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed session, pursuant 
to the Community Charter, Section 90(1)(e) [land matter]. 

 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN 



Document Number: 1897544 

  
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD IN THE  

CAO MEETING ROOM, CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH 
VANCOUVER, BC, ON MONDAY, MARCH 30, 2020 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back* 
Councillor D. Bell* 
Councillor A. Girard* 
Councillor T. Hu*  
Councillor J. McIlroy* 
Councillor T. Valente* 
 
*Participated electronically 
 
 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
K. Graham, City Clerk 
C. Baird, Deputy City Clerk 
H. Granger, City Solicitor* 
B. Themens, Director, Finance* 
C. Nichols, Manager, Human Resources* 
M. Epp, Director, Planning and Development*  
M. Friesen, Planner 2* 
S. Galloway, Manager, Planning* 
A. Devlin, Manager, Transportation Planning* 
R. Skene, Director, Community and Partner Engagement* 
L. Orr, Deputy Director, Community and Partner Engagement* 
D. Pope, Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment* 
G. Schalk, Fire Chief* 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
VERBAL UPDATE 
 
COVID-19 Pandemic – Mayor Buchanan 
 
Mayor Buchanan provided a verbal update regarding COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
1. THAT the Regular Agenda of March 30, 2020 be amended as follows: 

 
-    Following “Consent Agenda”, add new Item 9 – “Verbal Report COVID-19 

Pandemic – Chief Administrative Officer”; 
 
-    Following existing Item 10, add new Item 12 – “2020 Financial Plan Discussion”; 
 
-    Pursuant to Ministerial Order No. M083, add consideration of bylaw adoption for 

all bylaws that receive third reading at this meeting; 
 
THAT the agenda be renumbered in accordance with these revisions; 

 
AND THAT the Agenda, as amended, be approved. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 30, 2020 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, March 9, 2020 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 
3. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, March 16, 2020 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
Mayor Buchanan declared the following proclamations: 
 

Health Care, Public Safety and Essential Service Workers Appreciation Month –  
April 2020 
 
Do Something Good for Your Neighbour Day – Every Day  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*4. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, February 28, 2020 

– File: 01-0400-60-0006/2020 
 
 Re: Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT the correspondence of Metro Vancouver, dated February 28, 2020, regarding 
the “Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief”, be received and filed. 

 
(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 30, 2020 

CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 
REPORT 
 
*5. Recommended Museum Deaccessions #16 – File: 15-7930-01-0001/2020 
 

Report: Director, North Vancouver Museum and Archives, March 12, 2020 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, North Vancouver Museum and Archives, 
dated March 12, 2020, entitled “Recommended Museum Deaccessions #16”: 
 
THAT Council authorize the North Vancouver Museum and Archives (NVMA) 
Commission to deaccession 184 artifacts owned solely by the City of North 
Vancouver; 

 
AND THAT all proceeds from the sale of deaccessioned materials be deposited in a 
Special Purpose Fund for the NVMA Commission’s use in maintaining the Museum 
and Archives collections and acquiring new items to augment the collections. 

 
(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 

 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*6. “Cab Regulation Bylaw, 2006, No. 7787, Repeal Bylaw, 2020, No. 8763” 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Cab Regulation Bylaw, 2006, No. 7787, Repeal Bylaw, 2020, No. 8763” be 
adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and affixed with the corporate seal. 
 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 

*7. “Ticket Information Utilization Bylaw, 1992, No. 6300, Amendment Bylaw, 2020, No. 
8764” 

 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Ticket Information Utilization Bylaw, 1992, No. 6300, Amendment Bylaw, 2020, 
No. 8764” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and affixed with the 
corporate seal. 

 
(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 30, 2020 

CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION – Continued  
 
*8. “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2020, No. 8768” 

(Passenger Directed Vehicles, Geo-fencing and Loading Zone Updates) 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2020,  
No. 8768” (Passenger Directed Vehicles, Geo-fencing and Loading Zone Updates) be 
adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
VERBAL REPORT 
 
9. COVID-19 Pandemic – Chief Administrative Officer 
 
The Chief Administrative Officer provided a verbal report regarding “COVID-19 Pandemic”. 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
Councillor Valente recused himself at 6:44 pm, declaring a potential conflict of interest with 
respect to Item 10 – “Heritage Revitalization Agreement Bylaw, 2020, No. 8752” and Item  
11 – “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 2020, No. 8753”. 
 
10.  “Heritage Revitalization Agreement Bylaw, 2020, No. 8752”  

(Chad Mooney / KC Mooney Architect, 109-115 East 1st Street) 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Mayor Buchanan 

 
THAT “Heritage Revitalization Agreement Bylaw, 2020, No. 8752” (Chad Mooney / KC 
Mooney Architect, 109-115 East 1st Street) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and City 
Clerk and affixed with the corporate seal. 

CARRIED 
(by members remaining)  

 
Councillor Bell is recorded as voting contrary to the motion. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 30, 2020 

BYLAWS – ADOPTION – Continued 
 
11. “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 2020, No. 8753”  

(Chad Mooney / KC Mooney Architect, 109-115 East 1st Street) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Mayor Buchanan 

 
THAT “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 2020, No. 8753” (Chad Mooney / KC Mooney 
Architect, 109-115 East 1st Street) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and 
affixed with the corporate seal. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
(by members remaining)  

 
Councillor Valente returned to the meeting at 6:48 pm.  
 
2020 FINANCIAL PLAN DISCUSSION 
 
12. 2020 Financial Plan Discussion 
 
Moved by Mayor Buchanan, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT Council direct the Chief Administrative Officer to report back to Council, in line 
with the Provincial taxation rules, with a 2020 Financial Plan that reduces the tax rate 
growth planned for this year as much as possible; 

 
THAT Council direct the Chief Administrative Officer to create a Financial Recovery 
Task Force with the purpose of understanding the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
to the organization and the City, creating an Economic Recovery Plan for the City, 
which is to include, but not be limited to, a review and analysis of revenue and 
expenditures, a capital project review, and report back to Council with these findings; 

 
THAT the Economic Recovery Plan outline the impact of how decreased revenue will 
affect services and projects in the City over the next 2 years; 

 
AND THAT the Financial Plan Framework be reviewed and recommendations 
provided to Council for any proposed improvements to the framework moving forward. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
Mayor Buchanan declared a recess from 7:00 to 7:03 pm in recognition of Health Care, 
Public Safety and Essential Service Workers Appreciation Month – April 2020. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 6 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 30, 2020 

REPORT 
 
13. Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw – File 05-1690-01-0001/2020 
 

Report:  Director, Finance, March 24, 2020 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 

 
PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Finance, dated March 24, 2020, entitled 
“Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw”: 
 
THAT “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw, 2020, No. 8749” be considered. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND, THIRD READINGS 
 
14. “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw, 2020, No. 8749” 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 

 
THAT “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw, 2020, No. 8749” be given first and 
second readings. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 

 
THAT “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw, 2020, No. 8749” be given third reading. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
15. “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw, 2020, No. 8749” 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 

 
THAT “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw, 2020, No. 8749” be adopted, signed by 
the Mayor and City Clerk and affixed with the corporate seal. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
Due to COVID-19, the Finance Committee Meeting was postponed. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 7 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 30, 2020 

PUBLIC MEETING – Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services  
Business Licence Bylaws 

 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Girard  
 

THAT the meeting recess to the Public Meeting regarding “Inter-Municipal 
Transportation Network Services Business Licence Agreement Bylaw, 2020, No. 
8766” and “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence 
Scheme Bylaw, 2020, No. 8767”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Public Meeting at 7:15 pm and reconvened at 7:32 pm. 
 
BYLAW – THIRD READING 
 
16. “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence Agreement Bylaw, 

2020, No. 8766” 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence Agreement 
Bylaw, 2020, No. 8766” be given third reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
17. “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence Agreement Bylaw, 

2020, No. 8766” 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence Agreement 
Bylaw, 2020, No. 8766” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and affixed 
with the corporate seal. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
BYLAW – THIRD READING 
 
18. “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence Scheme Bylaw, 

2020, No. 8767” 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence Scheme 
Bylaw, 2020, No. 8767” be given third reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 8 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 30, 2020 

BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
19. “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence Scheme Bylaw, 

2020, No. 8767” 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Inter-Municipal Transportation Network Services Business Licence Scheme 
Bylaw, 2020, No. 8767” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and affixed 
with the corporate seal. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES 
 
Nil. 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Nil. 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
Nil. 
 
CITY CLERK’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed session, pursuant to the 
Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(c) [labour relations], 90(1)(e) [land matter] and 
90(1)(i) [legal advice]. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole, Closed session, at 7:36 pm and 
reconvened at 8:20 pm. 
 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
20. Land Matter – File: 10-5040-03-0001/2020 
 

Report: Planner 2, March 18, 2020  
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated March 18, 2020, regarding a land 
matter: 
 
THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, be ratified; 

 
AND THAT the wording of the recommendation and the report of the Planner 2, dated 
March 18, 2020, remain in the Closed session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 9 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 30, 2020 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) – Continued  
 
21. Land Matter and Legal Advice – File: 08-3360-20-0454/1 
 

Report:  Director, Community and Partner Engagement, March 26, 2020 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Community and Partner Engagement, dated 
March 26, 2020, regarding a land matter and legal advice: 
 
THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, be ratified; 

 
AND THAT the wording of the recommendation and the report of the Director, 
Community and Partner Engagement, dated March 26, 2020, remain in the Closed 
session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:21 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the City Clerk” 
_______________________________ 
CITY CLERK 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

For Metro Vancouver meetings on Friday, March 27, 2020
Please note these are not the official minutes. Board in Brief is an informal summary. Material relating to any of the 
following items is available on request from Metro Vancouver. For more information, please contact 
Greg. Vaiouta)metrovancouver.ora or Kelly.Sinoskita)metrovancouver.ora

Metro Vancouver Regional District

E 1.1 Metro 2040 Urban Centre and FTDA Policy Review - Final Recommendations REFERRED

The Metro 2040 Urban Centre and FTDA Policy Review is an initiative to explore implementation challenges 
and areas for improvement to the regional growth framework of the regional growth strategy. The review 
is now complete and staff have drafted five recommendations intended to provide direction on addressing 
the identified challenges and improve the Urban Centre and FTDA policies that will be included in Metro 
2050, the update to the regional growth strategy.

The MVRD Board referred this item back to staff.

E 2.1 Contribution Agreement - Catching the Spirit 2019 Youth Society APPROVED

The MVRD Board approved the Contribution Agreement with the Catching the Spirit 2019 Youth Society for 
a three-year term commencing January 1, 2020 and ending December 31, 2022, with annual contributions 
of $75,000 per year.

E 2.2 Regional Parks Naming, Renaming, and Dedications Policy Revision APPROVED

In 2019, Metro Vancouver staff reviewed the existing Regional Parks Naming and Dedications Policy and 
proposed amendments to enable consideration of Indigenous place names, renaming and dual naming in 
regional parks. The MVRD Board approved the Regional Parks Naming, Renaming, and Dedications Policy 
as presented.

E 3.1 BC Utilities Commission Municipal Energy Utilities Inquiry APPROVED

The MVRD Board will write to the British Columbia Utilities Commission concerning the Municipal Energy 
Utilities Inquiry, conveying its position that municipalities should continue to retain core decision making 
about district energy services, because local governments are well positioned to implement and regulate 
district energy, and municipal energy utilities occupy a unique and important role for addressing climate 
change.

Reviewed by:

A
CAO

1



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.Org

E 4.1 Addressing the Greenhouse Gas Intensity of Buildings in the BC Building Code APPROVED

Buildings account for one quarter of regional GHG emissions, primarily through burning natural gas for 
space and water heating. The BC Energy Step Code, adopted by many jurisdictions in the region and across 
B.C., establishes energy efficiency targets, but does not directly address GEIG emissions reductions in new 
construction. This will lead to many new buildings that will require significant retrofits to become carbon 
neutral in the future, costing building owners time and money.

The MVRD Board will write a letter to the provincial Minister of Municipal Affairs and Elousing and other 
appropriate provincial government ministries requesting that the Province include:

• opt-in greenhouse gas intensity performance requirements for new construction in the British 
Columbia Building Code;

• an option to require zero emissions space heating and hot water; and
• complementary requirements in the proposed provincial "Retrofit Code" for existing buildings.

G 1.1 Regional Parkland Acquisition and Development Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 1304, 2020 APPROVED

The MVRD Board approved the establishment of a new statutory reserve for Regional Parks to receive, hold 
and provide funds for Regional Park Land Acquisition and Park Development; gave first, second, and third 
readings to the Regional Parkland Acquisition and Development Reserve Fund Bylaw then passed and finally 
adopted said bylaw.

G 2.1 MVRD Residential Indoor Wood Burning Emission Regulation Bylaw No. 1303, 2020 APPROVED

Wood smoke is a major source of fine particulate matter (PM2.5) emissions, including black carbon 
associated with climate change. Staff presented a bylaw intended to reduce the health and environmental 
impacts of emissions from residential indoor wood burning while responding to needs identified during a 
comprehensive consultation process.

The MVRD Board gave first, second and third readings to the Residential Indoor Wood Burning Emission 
Regulation Bylaw; then passed and finally adopted said bylaw.

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries

The Board received information items and delegation summaries from standing committees.

Regional Planning Committee - March 6, 2020

Information Items:

5.3 Regional Industrial Lands Strategy - Draft and Status Update
j

The Regional Industrial Lands Strategy is nearing completion after two years of research and engagement 
work. Informed through the current and final round of stakeholder engagement, it is anticipated that the

2



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 KitiCjSway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

Strategy will be finalized in spring 2020, for consideration by the Industrial Lands Strategy Task Force and 
the MVRD Board. The Strategy, as well as other related work, will also inform the update to the regional 
growth strategy that is currently underway (Metro 2050). Metro Vancouver staff are in the process of 
engaging with stakeholders to receive further input on the draft Strategy's proposed recommendations.

5.4 Metro 2040 Industrial and Mixed Employment Policy Review Scope of Work

To inform the update to Metro Vancouver 2040: Shaping our Future (Metro 2040), the regional growth 
strategy, Metro Vancouver is undertaking an Industrial and Mixed Employment Policy Review. The Policy 
Review, along with results from the forthcoming Regional Industrial Lands Strategy will provide key inputs 
into the update, and will include engagement with member municipalities and industry stakeholders to test 
and refine recommended policy changes to the regional growth strategy. The Committee can expect to see 
a report on the completed policy review by mid-2020.

5.5 Metro 2050 Q1 2020 Status Update

In April 2019, Metro Vancouver began the process of updating Metro Vancouver 2040: Shaping our Future 
(Metro 2040), the regional growth strategy. The amended regional growth strategy will be titled Metro 
2050. The development of content for Metro 2050 is taking place through a series of policy reviews on 
different policy topics; progress on these is summarized below. Engagement activities are guided by the 
Metro Vancouver Board-approved Metro 2050 Engagement Plan and those activities that have already 
occurred are summarized below.

Finance and Intergovernment Committee - March 11, 2020

Delegation Summaries:

3.1 Craig Richmond, President and CEO, Vancouver Airport Authority, Anne Murray, Vice President Airline 
Business Development and Public Affairs, Vancouver Airport Authority, and Wayne Wright, Metro 
Vancouver's Appointee to the YVR Board of Directors.

Greater Vancouver Water District

E 1.1 Award of Phase C - Construction Engineering Services for the Annacis Water WITHDRAWN
Supply Tunnel

This item was withdrawn.

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries

The Board received information items and delegation summaries from standing committees. 

Water Committee - March 5, 2020 

Information Items:

3



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

5.1 2019 Seymour Salmonid Society's Annual Report for Greater Vancouver Water District

The Seymour Salmonid Society is a non-profit organization that operates the Seymour River Hatchery on 
Greater Vancouver Water District (GVRD) lands at the base of the Seymour Falls Dam. GVRD and the Society 
have been partners since 1989 constructing fisheries enhancement projects, raising public awareness on 
water and fisheries issues and creating stewardship opportunities in the Seymour Valley. Over the years, 
the partnership has influenced tens of thousands of people through special events, K-12 programs, and 
passive visitors. The GVWD has a current three-year (2018-2020) Contribution Agreement with the Society 
for $125,000 annually. The funding provides for core hatchery and education program operating expenses.

Greater Vancouver Sewage and Drainage District

E 1.1. Direct Connections to Regional Liquid Waste Facilities Policy APPROVED

Historically, member jurisdictions have requested direct connections to the regional sewer system to service 
private properties if municipal sewers were not available nearby, and Metro Vancouver assessed those 
requests on a case-by-case basis.

A policy was brought forward to formalize the process for direct connection requests to regional facilities, 
including who may apply, the criteria to do so, and ownership and maintenance responsibilities.

The GVS&DD Board approved the Direct Connections to Regional Liquid Waste Facilities Policy as presented.

G 1.1 Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District Sewerage and Drainage Areas APPROVED 
Boundaries Amending Bylaw No. 335, 2020 - Fraser Sewerage Area - PID 013-872- 303,
Township of Langley

The GVS&DD Board gave first, second and third reading to the Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage 
District's Sewerage and Drainage Areas Boundaries Amending Bylaw No. 335, 2020; and passed, and finally 
adopted the Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District's Sewerage and Drainage Areas Boundaries 
Amending Bylaw No. 335, 2020.

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries

The Board received information items and delegation summaries from standing committees.

Liquid Waste Committee - March 12, 2020

Information Items:

5.2 Results for 2019 Wipe It, Green Bin It Campaign

As a region, an estimated $2.7 million is spent every year to deal with the impacts of fats, oils and grease 
(FOG) in the sewer system. The 2019 Wipe It, Green Bin It campaign asked residents to put FOG in their 
green bins, instead of down their sinks.

4



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

Zero Waste Committee - March 13, 2020

Information Items:

5.1 Customer Service and Communication Enhancements at Metro Vancouver Solid Waste Facilities

Over the past year Metro Vancouver has expanded the number of communication tools available to 
customers to enhance their experience at solid waste facilities and encourage diversion. Accurate and 
accessible information about regional facility reuse, recycling and disposal services and programs can 
improve customer awareness and use of these services.

5.2 Create Memories Not Garbage - 2019 Campaign Results

The holidays are a heavy consumption season where residents fall into customs/traditions that can cause 
unnecessary waste. The 2019 "Create Memories, Not Garbage" campaign asked residents to try doing one 
thing differently to reduce their waste. Through a region-wide media promotion, residents were offered 
ideas to make low-waste celebrating easier.

Metro Vancouver Housing Corporation

E 1.1 Evaluation Criteria for Metro Vancouver Housing Development on Member Lands APPROVED

Metro Vancouver Housing (MVH) is actively working to build more affordable rental housing. One way is 
through partnerships with member jurisdictions. In February 2020, Metro Vancouver issued an Expression 
of Interest (EOI) for member jurisdictions to submit municipally-owned land to lease or transfer to MVH at 
a nominal cost.

The EOI outlines considerations for submissions including: development potential, municipal 
actions/incentives to support development, tenant livability, financial feasibility for MVH, and regional 
equity. Staff used these considerations to draft evaluation criteria and weighting to prioritize EOI 
submissions that best meet MVH's objectives. The Housing Committee considered the evaluation criteria 
and provided direction for certain revisions.

The MVHC Board endorsed the evaluation criteria contained in the report.

5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



COVID 19 Response Structure

Presented April 20 2020



COVID 19 Response Structure

Three areas of focus for CNV Response:
• CNV Coordination Working Group*
• Regional Response (NSEM)
• Forward / Scenario Planning

* First committee struck prior to Spring Break, and 
has continued to evolve as situation continues

2



CNV Coordination Working Group

3

Policy/ Strategy Group  
(Exec)

Incident Command -
Pandemic

Leanne McCarthy

City Hall and Operations 
Essential  Services 

Doug Pope

Communications
Connie Rabold

Finance
Ben Themens

Human Resources
Corinne Nichols

Logistics + Other City 
Services Operations
Heather Reinhold

Fire Services
Dave Owens

RCMP and Police Support 
Services

Ghalib Bhayani 
Stephanie Fraser

Lead
Barb Pearce



Rationale for Working Group Structure

• Restructuring of organization to focus on 
Essential Service

• Increase in collaboration and innovation
• Increase in communication - regular 

checkpoints throughout week
• Online services and modifications in 

services

4



CNV Essential Services
Focus on Delivery of Critical / Essential 
Services to community:

• Council Meetings
• EPE Operations 
• Enforcement and Bylaws
• Inspections

5



HR, Finance, Communications
Key corporate stakeholders:

• Structure ensures key stakeholders are 
integrated into response effort

• Working group is informed by Section 
Heads about operational updates, 
challenges and changes

• Updates integrated for: financial 
reimbursement system, new payroll codes, 
technology changes or reports

6



Logistics
Ensures Essential Services have tools and 
resources to continue 

• Collaboration between IT, Records 
Management, Facilities and HR

• Facilitate Remote Working Arrangements
• Monitor and track citywide staffing data 

(such as # of working remotely)

7



Other Essential Services

Continue to provide vital safety services and 
updates on service trends

• Fire Services
• NSEM 
• RCMP, Police Administration

8



9

Thank you.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



North Shore Emergency Operations 
Centre – COVID 19

Presented April 20, 2020



Nov 17 Earliest Detected Case (China)
Jan 15 First Case Reported in Canada
Mar 8 Lynn Valley Lodge Outbreak in the News
Mar 9 Virtual EOC at Level 1; weekly SitReps

Mar 11 WHO Declares COVID-19 a Pandemic
Mar 16 NS EOC Staffed at Level 1; daily SitReps
Mar 17 BC PHO Declares Public Health Emergency
Mar 18 EMBC Task Number Issued to Local Authorities

Mar 18
BC Public Safety Minister Declares Provincial 
Emergency

Mar 30 NS EOC Staffed at Level 2
Apr 8 NS EOC shifts to Level 2 (virtual)

N
O

V
1

7

Earliest Detected Case (China)

JA
N

1
5

First Case Reported 
in Canada

Lynn Valley Lodge 
Outbreak in the News

MAR09

Virtual EOC at Level 1; Weekly SitReps

WHO Declares 
COVID-19 
a Pandemic

NS EOC Staffed at Level 1; Daily SitReps

MAR16.    18

BC Declares 
Public Health 
Emergency

M
A

R
0

8

M
A

R
1

1

M
A

R
1

7

BC Declares 
Provincial 
Emergency

M
A

R
1

8

NS EOC Staffed at Level 2

MAR30 APR08

NS EOC Shifts to  Level 2 (virtual)

Provincial Task Number Issued

COVID-19 PROGRESSION 
& RESPONSE TIMELINE



EOC STAFFING CHART

3

(Current)



PRIMARY EOC FUNCTIONS

DIRECTOR

Operations Logistics Planning Finance

Information

Officer

Liaison 
Officer

4



MANAGEMENT STAFF

5

DIRECTOR

LIAISON 
OFFICER

INFORMATION 
OFFICER

• Rotational between NSEM Operations 
Committee

• Oversees EOC Operations and provides updates

• Supports EOC operation – daily, weekly 
coordinated calls and updates

• Connects and shares information with external 
agencies and NS EOC

• Coordinate with 3 Communications Departments

• Coordinates NS EOC communications both 
internally and externally



OPERATIONS SECTION

OPERATIONS

Tactical Support 
to LGH

Support 
Emergency / 

Essential Services 

6



LOGISTICS SECTION

LOGISTICS

Resource 
Identification 

and 
Management

Logistical 
Support to LGH 
EOC and EMBC

7



PLANNING SECTION

PLANNING

Situation Unit

Social and 
Community Impact 

Unit 

Municipal Service 
Tracking Unit

8



FINANCE SECTION

FINANCE

Municipal 
Support with 

PREOC 
Submissions

Coordinated 
Reporting, 

Recording and 
Recovery Process

9



10

Thank you.



COVID-19 Pandemic Scenario Planning 
and Impact Assessment 

Presented April 20, 2020



Scenario thinking can help us prepare for a 
future that is hard to predict and clarify our 
readiness for potential impacts

2



Two key uncertainties will drive the impact of 
COVID-19 on our community

Epidemiological Factors

e.g, time until virus suppression; type 
and duration of public health measures

Economic Factors

e.g, depth and duration of economic 
impact; recovery trajectory

3



Three scenarios are plausible based on current 
trends and key uncertainties

Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3

When is the pandemic 
suppressed?

Spring 2020 Spring 2020, with “second 

wave” in Fall 2020

Fall 2020

When are most public health 
restrictions lifted?

Spring 2020 Spring 2020 and re-
introduced in Fall 2020

Fall 2020

What is the potential 
magnitude of the economic 
impact?

Worse than 2008 
recession 
(-5% to 10% contraction in 
provincial GDP in 2020)

Comparable or worse than 
1982 recession 
(-10% to 15% contraction in 
provincial GDP in 2020)

Unprecedented economic 
contraction
(-15% to 20% contraction in 
provincial GDP in 2020)

How long will recovery 
take?

Fast (e.g., end of 2021) Slow (e.g., end of 2022) Prolonged (e.g., end of 
2023 or later)

4



Applying the scenarios to assess impacts and 
identify opportunities

5
Scenarios Potential

impacts and risks 
in key areas

Opportunities to 
improve resiliency

5



Impact and resiliency analysis focused on four 
key dimensions

Growth and 
development 

impacts

Social and 
household 

impacts

Economy and 
business 
impacts

Corporate 
impacts

6



Understanding potential impacts through 
multiple sources and perspectives

• Research, articles and studies

• Key Informant Interviews

• Financial modelling

7



Local dimensions: potential areas for risk

• Housing: nearly half of renters spent over 30% of income on shelter

• Economy: high proportion of small businesses and over one-third of 
labour force in consumer service-based industries

• Community: high levels of unemployment and food insecurity, 
relative to regional average

• Health: highest level of chronic breathing conditions in region

8



Local dimensions: potential areas of strength 
and resiliency
• Community: strong sense of community belonging and connection

• Access to services: many services and amenities are close to 
where we live and accessible by walking, cycling

• Partnerships: robust network of partnerships and collaboration in 
delivery of community-based services

• Corporate finances: the City has a robust financial framework with 
diverse revenue streams and healthy reserves

9



Potential interventions to increase resiliency

• Project and service prioritization

• Addressing new needs

• Corporate business planning

• New service delivery models

• Information and awareness building

• New partnership models

10



Next steps

• End of April: Complete impact and resiliency analysis

• Early May: Report back to City Leadership

11



12

Thank you.



2020 Financial Plan 

Presented April 20, 2020
Finance



To provide information and receive approval on:

 2020 Financial Plan

 2020 Average Tax Rate Increase

Staff request that:

 the 2020 Financial Plan be approved in principle, and

 that direction be provided to bring forward the necessary Financial Plan 
Bylaw

2

2020 Financial Plan



2020 Financial Plan Process/Schedule
Date Items for Discussion

November 4, 2019 2020-2029 Draft Preliminary Project Plan

November 25, 2019 2020-2029 Preliminary Project Plan

December 2, 2019 2020-2029 Utility Operations & Rates Model 
(Water, Sewer, Storm, Refuse, Recycling)

January 27, 2020 Draft 2020 Program Plan (Operating Budget)

April 20, 2020 Final 2020 Financial Plan (Project and Program)

April 27, 2020 2020 Financial Plan Bylaw
Tax Rate Distribution Options

3



2020-2029 Project Plan
 2020-2029 budget of 

$484.8M 

 78% City Funding, 22% 
External Contributions

 Shortfall of $11.8M in 
2021

 Shortfall of $15.0M in 
2021-2023

4



2020 Program Plan
 Operational, continuous 

annual expenditures 
such as maintenance, 
energy costs and on-
going programs.

 2020 budget of $81.2M
 80% funded by property 

taxes
 2.0% increase to 

Property taxes in 2020

5



2020 Tax Rate Increase: 2.00%
2020 Expense and Revenue Changes $(000’s) Tax %

2020 Proposed Overall Tax Rate Increase (Jan 15, 2020) 2,403 4.58%

Salary and Other Provisions (637) (1.2%)

Annual Tax Levy Increase for Infrastructure (525) (1.0%)

Tax Roll Growth (500) (0.9%)

New Items – January 15, 2020 Program Plan (373) (0.7%)

Major Agencies and Core Funded Agencies 305 0.6%

Decrease in Non-Tax Revenues 263 0.5%

Other Items (various) 165 0.3%

Change in assumption re: revenue and tax rate - (0.2%)

2020 Proposed Overall Tax Rate Increase (April 9, 2020) 1,102 2.00%

6

*1% tax rate increase generates $550,000



Tax Rate History for the past 5 year:

7

Year Operating 
Programs

Project Plan Total

2015 1.90% 2.00% 3.90%

2016 1.90% 2.00% 3.90%

2017 1.40% 2.00% 3.40%

2018 1.50% 1.00% 2.50%

2019 2.25% 2.00% 4.25%

2020 2.00% 0.00% 2.00%



COVID-19 Budgetary Effects
Assess Revenue Reduction Drivers (Non-Controllable vs. Controllable) 

Non-Controllable Revenue Reduction Drivers (Examples):

 Economic contraction and reduced business activity resulting in potential municipal costs
 Senior government public health directives requiring closure of services that have user fees
 Capital market impact on investment earnings and deferred revenue

Controllable Revenue Reduction Drivers (Examples):

 Decisions to stop or reduce services that have user fees
 Decisions to reduce, suspend or defer fees for service (e.g. parking, facility rental, maintenance 

contributions, etc.)
 Decisions to allow delayed property tax payment which will reduce tax penalty revenues and 

investment earnings

8



COVID-19 Budgetary Effects

Two types of impacts

 Funding gap:
Reduction in variable revenues (e.g. parking, permits, facility rental, 
recreation programs) and/or expenditure increases. Municipalities 
are not allowed to run operating deficits.

 Cash flow:  
Short to mid-term cash flow issues resulting from delay in tax/utility 
fee collection

9



COVID-19 Budgetary Effects

Mitigation Measures

 Cash flow improvement through line of credit increase

 Expense Management 

 Redirection of Capital Funding to Operating, excluding statutory reserve 
funds

 Financial Stabilization Reserve 

10



2020-2029 Financial Plan Next Steps:

 April 27th Council Meeting:  Financial Plan Bylaw &

Tax Rate Distribution Options

11



12

Thank you



The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Ben Themens, Director of Finance

Subject: 2020 Financial Plan

Date: ApriM4,2020 File No: 05-1700-01-0001/2020

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Director of Finance, dated April 14, 2020, entitled 
“2020 Financial Plan”:

THAT staff bring forward a Financial Plan Bylaw (2020 to 2029) that reflects an 
overall tax rate increase of 2.00% which includes 2.00% for the Program Plan 
(operating), 0% for Infrastructure Reserves and 0% for New Items.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. 2020-2029 Project Plan dated April 9, 2020 (CityDocs #1902338)
2. Draft 2020 Program Plan report dated January 15, 2020 (CityDocs#1873536)
3. 2020 Utility Rates report dated November 20, 2019 (CityDocs #1873175)

DISCUSSION:

The purpose of this report is to ask for endorsement of the 2020 Financial Plan, and to 
obtain Council’s approval on the proposed tax rate increase for 2020.

The Community Charter requires that Council adopt a five year Financial Plan that 
includes both operating and capital items before May 15 in each year. For many years, 
the City has exceeded this requirement by producing ten-year Financial Plans.

Document Number: 1899956 VI



REPORT: 2020 Financial Plan 
Date: April 14, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 7 

Thus far, the City’s 2020 – 2029 financial planning process has considered the 2020 Draft 
Program Plan presented to Council for feedback (January 27, 2020), the 2020-2029 
Preliminary Project Plan (December 2, 2019 – attachment updated April 9, 2020) and the 
2020 Utility Operations & Rates Model approved (December 2, 2019), respectively 
Attachments 1, 2 and 3.  
 
Since the January 27, 2020, presentation to Council, various adjustments to the Draft 
2020 Financial Plan have been made.  The City’s updated 2020 Financial Plan totals 
$248.7 million which includes the following: 
 
 2019 2020 Increase 
General Program Plan 78.6 81.2 2.6 
General Project Plan 73.2 80.8 7.6 
Utilities Programs (water, sewer, solid waste) 30.9 30.2 (0.7) 
Cemetery (self-funded) 0.4 0.4 0.0 
Collection for Other Government 49.6 56.1 6.5 
    
Total Financial Plan  
(excluding depreciation & non-statutory reserves)

$ 232.7M $ 248.7M $ 16.0M 

 
 
General Program Plan 
 
Programs are operational expenditures, such as maintenance, on-going programs, and 
energy costs, which are relatively continuous.  The Program Plan is funded mainly by 
property taxation revenue (81%) and partially by other non-tax revenue sources. 
 
The draft 2020 Program Plan dated January 15, 2020 (Attachment 1), reflected a tax 
rate increase of 4.58%, which included ongoing provisions for increases in City wages 
and benefits, RCMP contract, agencies, new capital cost impacts, and other cost 
adjustments.  This has been adjusted to account for updated estimates and emerging 
priorities, resulting in a proposed tax rate increase of 2.00%.  
  



REPORT: 2020 Financial Plan 
Date: April 14, 2020 
 

Page 3 of 7 

 
Current Overall Increases and Decreases from 2019 to 2020 
   
 $ (000’s) Tax Impact 
2020 General Operating Program Increase   
   Salary and Other Provisions 1,461 2.8% 
   RCMP Contract 847 1.6% 
   Major Agencies and Core Funded Agencies 419 0.8% 
   New Capital Cost Impacts 133 0.3% 
   Decrease in Non-Tax Revenues 86 0.2% 
   Other Items (various) 59 0.1% 
   Tax Roll Growth (1,500) (2.9%) 
2020 Net Operating Program Increase 1,505 2.9% 
   
   Annual Tax Levy Increase for Infrastructure 525 1.0% 
2020 Proposed Baseline Tax Rate Increase 2,030 3.9% 
   
   New Items – Operating 373 0.7% 
2020 Proposed Tax Rate Increase (Jan 15, 2020) 2,403 4.58% 
   
  Salary and Other Provisions1 (637) (1.2%) 
  Annual Tax Levy Increase for Infrastructure2  
  Tax Role Growth3 

  New Items – January 15, 2020 Financial Plan4 
  Major Agencies and Core Funded Agencies5 
  Decrease in Non-Tax Revenues6 

  Other Items (various)7 

  Change in assumption re: revenue and tax rate8 

(525) 
(500) 
(373) 
305 
263 
165 

- 

(1.0%) 
(0.9%) 
(0.7%) 
0.6% 
0.5% 
0.3% 

(0.2%) 
2020 Proposed Tax Rate Increase (April 9, 2020) 1,102 2.00% 

 
 
Changes to Program Plan since January 15, 2020: 
 
1 Salary and Other Provisions - decreased due to revised costs assumptions regarding 
unsettled employment contracts and reorganizational adjustments.  
 
2 Annual Levy for Infrastructure - the January 16, 2020 Program Plan recommended 
transfer from General Program Plan to General Project Plan representing a 5% (a 1% 
tax rate increase of $525,000) increase in the annual transfer to the Project Plan.  This 
has been removed to keep 2020 funding consistent with that of 2019 at $9,953,800, 
representing approximately 15% of the City’s annual tax levy.  
 
3 Tax Roll Growth - at the January 27, 2020 Regular Council Meeting the Draft 2020 
Program Plan presented to Council proposed a 4.58% tax rate increase. At that time, the 
report mentioned that staff had not recognized the full amount of potential tax revenue 
growth from new buildings. Since then, staff has reviewed the latest information and 
considered potential assessment appeals. The estimated $2.0 million tax roll growth is 
now being fully recognized, resulting in a 0.8% reduction of the proposed tax rate 
increase. 



REPORT: 2020 Financial Plan 
Date: April 14, 2020 
 

Page 4 of 7 

 
4 New Items- all new items recommended in the January 15, 2020 Program Plan have 
been removed from the 2020 Financial Plan.  
 
5 Major Agencies and Core Funded Agencies- this increase in funding is due to 
provisions being put in place for the City’s obligations for operating losses being 
forecasted in City shared-cost agencies.  
 
6 Decrease in Non-Tax Revenues- decreases in non-tax revenue are forecasted for 2020 
in various City operating streams, such as Parking, Permits and Business Licenses, due 
to evolving economic conditions.   
 
7 Other Items (various) – provision put in place for borrowing costs associated with 
“Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw, 2020, No. 8749” dated March 24, 2020. 
 
8 Change in assumption re: revenue and tax rate – the finalized assessment roll 
indicates that a 1% tax rate increase generates approximately $550,000 in tax revenue 
for the City, updated from $525,000 in the January 15, 2020 Program Plan. This 
resulted in a reduction totalling 0.3% of the tax rate impact of the items included in the 
table.  
 
 
General Project Plan 
 
Projects are those expenditures having a specific deliverable, and definite beginning and 
endpoint. The 2020-2029 Project Plan (Attachment 2) includes proposed projects 
totaling $484.8 million. The 2020 proposed projects total $80.8 million and is funded by a 
combination of City funding (78%) and external contributions (22%). It should be noted 
that authority to spend these funds will only be provided through funding appropriations 
which require further Council motions.  
 
The proposed projects are summarized as follows: 
 
 2020 (Only) Total 2020-2029 
Land/Major Investments 34.5 37.1 
Buildings 20.9 249.8 
Structures 19.0 154.7 
Equipment 6.4 43.2 
Total Project Plan $ 80.8M $ 484.8M 

 
* Note that 2020 figures are higher on an annual basis as it includes provisions for potential projects (Parkland Acquisition, External 
Contributions, various amenity project provisions etc.) 
 
At the December 2, 2019, Regular Meeting, Council provided feedback regarding the 
2020-2029 Project Plan. It was recommended that the $2.5M allocated to the Child 
Care Capital Program (City Facilities) in 2022 be brought forward to 2021. This 
recommendation has been addressed in the attached version of the plan.   
 



REPORT: 2020 Financial Plan 
Date: April 14, 2020 
 

Page 5 of 7 

As mentioned previously, the initially proposed increase to the Levy for Infrastructure 
has been removed from the 2020 Financial Plan.  While the impact on the 2020 Project 
Plan is being mitigated through use of a 2019 surplus, it will result in less City Funding 
being available for projects in 2021 and onwards.  
 
In addition, considering recent market conditions amid the current COVID-19 pandemic 
and the high degree of uncertainty around potential development projects, the City has 
elected to significantly scale back forecasted Community Amenity Contributions from 
2021 onwards.  
 
The 2020 Project Plan remains fully funded, but these changes increase the Plan’s 
2021 shortfall from $6.7M to $11.8M, as well as the Plan’s combined 2021-2023 
shortfall from $9.2M to $15.0M. 
 
Unfunded Projects, 2021 
  
Per Draft Preliminary Project Plan (December 2, 2019) 
   Reduced forecast for CAC’s    
   Childcare moved from 2022 to 2021 

$ 6.7M 
$ 2.8M 
$ 2.5M 

   Tax Levy decreased 
   Available 2021 balance in Civic Amenity Reserve 

$ 0.5M 
($ 0.7M) 

 $ 11.8M 
 
The current economic climate presents many risks and a high degree of uncertainty.  
While the 2020 Financial Plan has been prepared and updated conservatively, there are 
many foreseen (potential for declining Developer Contributions and interest rates) and 
unforeseen risks that will be addressed in the coming months as further information 
becomes available.   
 
Support for the current plan is part of an ongoing process; Council will have many more 
opportunities to make modifications to project funding included in the 10-Year Plan.  
Council must also adopt funding resolutions (or bylaws in the case of DCC funding) 
before spending can take place.  
 
Utility Programs 
 
The City’s Utility programs include water, sewerage and drainage, and solid waste 
(refuse, green can, recycling and eco levy). The various utilities are self-funded through 
the annual utility rate setting process. The utility rates reflect the City’s requirements for 
ongoing operations, capital programs, reserves, cost of services provided by Metro 
Vancouver, and other contractual costs (i.e. recycling). 
 
At the December 2, 2019 Regular Meeting, Council approved the 2020 Utility Rates 
(Attachment 3). The 2020 flat rate utility charge for a single unit dwelling increased from 
$1,244 in 2019 to $1,294 in 2020, which is equivalent to a 4.0% increase.  This is an 
estimate as Storm Drainage and Eco Levies are levied based on taxable assessment. 
 
  



REPORT: 2020 Financial Plan 
Date: April 14, 2020 
 

Page 6 of 7 

The 2020 Utility Program expenditure budget totals $30.2 million.  This consists of the 
following: 
 
 2019 2020 Increase 
Water 13.9 13.2 (0.7) 
Sewer & Drainage 12.9 13.1 0.2 
Solid Waste (refuse, green can & eco levy) 4.1 3.9 (0.2) 
Total Utility Program $ 30.9M $30.2M ($0.7) 

 
 
Flat Rate Utility Fees for a Single Unit Dwelling: 
 
 2019 2020 Increase ($) Increase (%)
Water 469.30 489.00 19.70 4.2% 
Sewer & Drainage 487.51 518.86 31.35 6.4% 
Solid Waste 286.92 285.90 (1.03) (0.4%) 
Total Flat Rate Utility Fee $1,243.74 $1,293.76 $50.02 4.0% 

 
 
Cemetery Program 
 
The City’s Cemetery operation is a self-funding program funded from sale of plots and 
cremation niches. Operational costs relate to burials, maintenance, and caretaking, 
carried out by City staff. The City’s 2020 cemetery budget is approximately $0.4 million.  
 
 
Collections for Other Governments 
 
The City collects approximately $56.1 million in taxes on behalf of other governments 
and agencies which include BC Assessment, Metro Vancouver (GVRD), Transit, 
Municipal Finance Authority and the Provincial School Levy. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Financial implications are discussed throughout the report and in additional materials 
provided. 
 
 
INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The 2020-2029 Financial Plan is a reflection of the policies of the City, and the work plans 
of all City departments.  In developing this budget, Finance staff rely on their close working 
relationship with staff in other departments and the City’s shared-cost agencies.  
 
2020 is certain to be a challenging year for the City, and the challenges facing the City 
are impacted in the City’s budget process, requiring reconsideration of all that we do.  
 



REPORT: 2020 Financial Plan 
Date: April 14, 2020

Finance wishes to thank all the members of staff who are contributing so much of their 
time and effort to provide leadership and cooperation to this ongoing process.

CORPORATE PLAN AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

The preparation and approval of a Financial Plan is consistent with the requirements of 
the Community Charter, with the 2020 Financial Plan Objectives, with several of the 
objectives of the City’s 2014 Official Community Plan and was prepared with 
consideration of the 2018-2022 Council Strategic Plan.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
Ben Themens 
Director, Finance

Page 7 of 7



2020 – 2029 Project Plan  

April 9, 2020   |   Finance Department 

Attachment 1
to Report of April 14, 2020



Table of Contents 

2020-2029 Project Plan 

Basic Assumptions ........................................................................................................................ 1 

Structure of the Plan ..................................................................................................................... 2 

Project Types ................................................................................................................................ 3 

Project Plan Summary .................................................................................................................. 4 

Projects Funded Matched to Funding Sources .......................................................................... 5-7 

Land and Major Investments ......................................................................................................... 8 

Buildings .................................................................................................................................. 9-11 

Structures Summary ................................................................................................................... 12 

Transportation and Streets .................................................................................................... 13-17 

Parks and Environment .......................................................................................................... 18-19 

Public Art ..................................................................................................................................... 20 

Equipment Summary .................................................................................................................. 21 

General Equipment ..................................................................................................................... 22 

Information Technology ......................................................................................................... 23-24 

Engineering Equipment ............................................................................................................... 25 

Fire Equipment ............................................................................................................................ 26 

Block Funding, On-Going Programs, One-Time Studies ....................................................... 27-28 

Reserves and Other Funding ................................................................................................. 29-39 



                                                                                                                                       

Basic assumptions underlying the Plan include: 

1. When provided, costs are based upon the best currently available information, and this means
that some of the costs are more accurate than others. Factors affecting accuracy include the level
of detailed planning which has been completed for the individual projects and plans, and the timing
of the projects. In general, 2020 costs are more accurate than costs for future years. 

2. There is an important exception. An estimated cost for Harry Jerome Redevelopment and
Renewal will not be known until the scope of the project has been determined. The amount
included in the Plan is a "placeholder" indicating the amount of funding the City may be able to
provide toward the projects, assuming priorities are not changed.
 

Forecast Assumptions

3. The Plan reflects the current forecast for the budget year, and provides an allocation basis for
subsequent year-to-year funding. Only the current year budgets will be used to appropriate funds;
the subsequent years’ budgets will be revised in the following years’ Plans. 

4. The Plan reflects the City’s longstanding practice of using internal reserves as the basis for
financing. The Plan is therefore sensitive to interest rate and reserve contribution fluctuations
(including contributions from land sales), and also reflects the necessity to postpone projects until
reserve funds are sufficient to support them.

5. The City currently has no debt, and there is no borrowing forecast in the Plan.

Contribution Assumptions

6. Contributions include amounts anticipated through fundraising and other private contributions,
including those provided by developers, as well as contributions from senior levels of government,
where these may be available.

7. Anticipated contributions from outside sources are shown as a source of funds for projects in the
Plan, where it is reasonable to anticipate receipt of the funds. However, it should be noted that, for
projects funded by contributions, the project scope as envisioned cannot be guaranteed if the
contributions are not forthcoming. 

Page 1



Structure of the Plan

The materials included provide summary information, followed by complete detailed listings of all
projects included in the Plan. 

Projects are grouped into ten categories as follows: 
1.    Land and Major Investments;
2.    Buildings;
3.    Structures – Streets and Transportation;
4.    Structures – Parks and Environment;
5.    Structures – Public Art;
6.    Equipment – General;
7.    Equipment – Information Technology;
8.    Equipment – Engineering;
9.    Equipment – Fire; and
10. Block Funding, On-Going Programs and Other Projects.

It should also be noted that, the 10 sections are further summarized into four additional categories.
The Plan information is summarized into those four categories on page 4 of the Plan:

1. Land/Major Investments - Section 1
2. Buildings - Section 2
3. Structures - Sections 3 to 5
4. Equipment - Sections 6 to 10

Page 2



Project Types

1. Maintenance & Replacement;
2. Ongoing Program;
3. Provision;
4. Major Renovation; 
5. New Capital Asset; and
6. Other Projects

10 Year Summary (Excluding Utilities)

Section Base Program Dedicated Funds New Initiatives Total
 1 - Land & Major Investments -$                           37,063,801$               -$                           37,063,801$          
 2 - Buildings 10,975,006                204,682,267               34,086,750                249,744,023          
 3 - Streets & Transportation 29,560,000                40,817,240                 54,369,426                124,746,666          
 4 - Parks & Environment 10,961,250                6,945,250                   11,136,000                29,042,500            
 5 - Public Art -                             936,822                      -                             936,822                 
 6 - General Equipment 4,280,681                  1,073,619                   -                             5,354,300              
 7 - IT Equipment 5,693,403                  422,150                      4,407,000                  10,522,553            
 8 - Engineering Equipment 6,904,000                   -                             6,904,000              
 9 - Fire Equipment 6,450,000                   -                             6,450,000              
10 - Block Funding, Ongoing 
Progr, Other Projects 8,632,518                  1,588,975                   3,790,050                  14,011,543            
TOTAL  $             70,102,858  $             306,884,123  $           107,789,226  $       484,776,208 

                                                                                                                                        
Projects have been grouped into six project types, which are identified in the top right-hand corner of
each project sheet:

It is the City’s long-standing policy to place the maintenance of existing infrastructure as a first priority,
and to only take on new facilities and programs when both an operating and capital source of funds
sufficient to ensure successful completion and maintenance of facilities and ongoing program delivery
can be identified. Based on this premise, and given the fact that there is generally little discretion about
funding basic maintenance projects, the projects identified as “Maintenance & Replacement” are
considered as being part of the Base Program. Also included in the Base Program are ongoing
programs such as the annual allocation of $85,000 to public art. 

Provisions are included in the plan to provide Council with some flexibility to fund projects from various 
designated sources of funding are also included in the Base Program. Such provisions can only be 
appropriated after a project has been identified and approved by Council. These projects are mainly 
colour coded in Green at the top right-hand corner of the project sheets, as well as in the left-hand 
column of the detailed project listings following each tab. Because the priorities for maintenance are 
based primarily on condition and requirements of the infrastructure, these projects have been so coded 
by the respective Project Manager and funding for those projects has been identified.

Projects in the Major Renovation, New Capital Assets, and Other Projects categories would provide new
facilities and/or new levels of service to the community. These projects have been colour coded in Blue
or in Red in the left-hand column of the detailed project listings as well as in the top right-hand corner of
the project sheets. Blue projects are those that have a dedicated source of funding in conformity with
the terms of reference of the reserve bylaws. Red projects are projects that do not have a dedicated
source of funding and for which a source of funding remains to be identified. Please note some
maintenance and replacement projects have been colour coded Blue if they have a dedicated source of
funds, for example, the Justice Administration Building Reserve. Council will be asked to rank Amenity
and non-infrastructure projects.

A summary of the total value, including external funding, of base program projects vs. non-base
program projects is as follows:

Page 3



  2020 - 2029 PROJECT PLAN
SUMMARY

Page 4

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 TOTAL

LAND/MAJOR INVESTMENTS

Funding Requested 34,513,801        150,000             300,000             300,000             300,000             $1,500,000 $37,063,801
City Funding 19,513,801        150,000             300,000             300,000             300,000             1,500,000          22,063,801        
Contributions 15,000,000        - - - - - 15,000,000 
Funded Amount 34,513,801 150,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,500,000 37,063,801

Funding Excess (Shortfall) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BUILDINGS

Funding Requested 20,923,717$      168,232,826$    23,935,610$      11,140,965$      2,114,630$        $23,396,275 $249,744,023
City Funding 20,612,763        166,426,200      23,337,741        9,018,460          2,692,758          25,857,212        247,945,134      
Contributions 310,954             397,776             622,869             102,616             55,722 308,952             1,798,889          
Funded Amount 20,923,717 166,823,976 23,960,610 9,121,076 2,748,480 26,166,164 249,744,023

Funding Excess (Shortfall) $0 ($1,408,850) $25,000 ($2,019,889) $633,850 $2,769,889 $0

STRUCTURES

Funding Requested 18,989,488$      22,677,000$      18,872,000$      39,341,500$      12,802,000$      $42,044,000 $154,725,988
City Funding 16,889,488        8,595,524          15,369,500        23,082,086        13,412,000        49,347,391        126,695,988      
Contributions 2,100,000          5,035,000          2,875,000          15,740,000        1,390,000          890,000             28,030,000        
Funded Amount 18,989,488 13,630,524 18,244,500 38,822,086 14,802,000 50,237,391 154,725,988

Funding Excess (Shortfall) $0 ($9,046,476) ($627,500) ($519,414) $2,000,000 $8,193,391 $0

EQUIPMENT

Funding Requested 6,353,543$        5,912,867$        4,409,717$        4,266,167$        3,450,967$        18,849,135$      43,242,396$      
City Funding 5,622,494          4,106,530          4,026,751          3,970,243          4,491,314          17,949,643        40,166,975        
Contributions 731,049             439,049             382,966             295,924             326,941             899,492             3,075,421          
Funded Amount 6,353,543 4,545,579 4,409,717 4,266,167 4,818,255 18,849,135 43,242,396

Funding Excess (Shortfall) $0 ($1,367,288) $0 $0 $1,367,288 $0 $0

GENERAL CAPITAL TOTALS

FUNDING REQUESTED 80,780,549$      $196,972,693 $47,517,327 $55,048,632 $18,667,597 $85,789,410 $484,776,208

CITY FUNDING 62,638,546        179,278,254      43,033,992        36,370,789        20,896,072        94,654,246        436,871,899      

CONTRIBUTIONS 18,142,003        5,871,825          3,880,835          16,138,540        1,772,663          2,098,444          47,904,310        

FUNDING EXCESS (SHORTFALL) $0 ($11,822,614) ($602,500) ($2,539,303) $4,001,138 $10,963,280 $0



  2020 - 2029 PROJECT PLAN
SUMMARY

                                                                               2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 TOTAL

LAND & MAJOR INVESTMENTS - TAB 1

Various Land Acquisitions 3,500,000               -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               3,500,000                  
Parks Acquisition 10,000,000             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               10,000,000                
Major Investments 20,688,801 50,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 1,000,000 22,338,801
Cemetery 325,000                  100,000                 100,000                100,000                100,000                500,000                    1,225,000
Funding Requested 34,513,801$           150,000$               300,000$              300,000$              300,000$              1,500,000$               37,063,801$              

  
City Funding Provided   
TSL Principal 3,500,000               -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               3,500,000                  
Parks DCC Reserve 9,900,000               -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               9,900,000                  
General Reserve 100,000 -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               100,000                     
Affordable Housing Reserve 5,688,801               50,000                   200,000                200,000                200,000                1,000,000                 7,338,801                  
Cemetery Development Reserve 325,000                  100,000                 100,000                100,000                100,000                500,000                    1,225,000                  
City Funding Provided 19,513,801             150,000                 300,000                300,000                300,000                1,500,000                 22,063,801                
Contributions 15,000,000             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               15,000,000                
Total Funding Provided 34,513,801             150,000                 300,000                300,000                300,000                1,500,000                 37,063,801                

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BUILDINGS - TAB 2

Capital Maintenance `

Funding Requested 2,182,400$             2,759,115$            2,222,110$           1,133,565$           902,430$              3,289,275$               12,488,895$              

City Funding Provided   
Annual Budget 1,595,801               2,156,993              1,599,241             1,030,949             846,708                2,980,323                 10,210,015                
Justice Administration Building Reserve 39,140                    4,346                     -                            -                            -                            -                               43,486                       
Building Reserve 86,505                    -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               86,505                       
General Reserve 200,000                  200,000                 -                            -                            -                            -                               400,000                     
City Funding Provided 1,921,446               2,361,339              1,599,241             1,030,949             846,708                2,980,323                 10,740,006                
Contributions 260,954                  397,776                 622,869                102,616                55,722                  308,952                    1,748,889                  
Total Funding Provided 2,182,400               2,759,115              2,222,110             1,133,565             902,430                3,289,275                 12,488,895                

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Harry Jerome CRC
  

Funding Requested  $           13,140,058  $       161,034,861  $         21,042,100  $           6,386,000  $           1,190,800  $                             -  $           202,793,819 

City Funding Provided   
Civic Amenity Fund HJ 13,140,058             161,034,861          21,042,100           6,386,000             1,190,800             -                               202,793,819              
Building Reserve -                               -                                 
City Funding Provided 13,140,058             161,034,861          21,042,100           6,386,000             1,190,800             -                               202,793,819              
Contributions -                              -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               -                                 
Total Funding Provided 13,140,058             161,034,861          21,042,100           6,386,000             1,190,800             -                               202,793,819              

Unfunded -                               -                                 

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Proposed New Projects 
 

Funding Requested                 5,601,259               4,438,850                  671,400               3,621,400                    21,400                20,107,000                 34,461,309 

City Funding Provided
Annual Budget 235,000                  -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               235,000                     
TSL Interest -                               -                                 
Civic Amenity Fund 2,710,000               3,030,000              75,000                  -                            -                            5,456,892                 11,271,892                
Heritage Reserve Fund 89,559                    -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               89,559                       
General Reserve 2,516,700               -                             621,400                1,601,511             655,250                17,419,997               22,814,859                
City Funding Provided 5,551,259               3,030,000              696,400                1,601,511             655,250                22,876,889               34,411,309                
Contributions 50,000                    -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               50,000                       
Total Funding Provided 5,601,259               3,030,000              696,400                1,601,511             655,250                22,876,889               34,461,309                

Unfunded -                                 

Excess Funding (Shortfall) 0 (1,408,850) 25,000 (2,019,889) 633,850                $2,769,889 $0

TOTAL Buildings
Requirements 20,923,717$           168,232,826$        23,935,610$         11,140,965$         2,114,630$           23,396,275$             249,744,023$            

City Funding Provided 20,612,763 166,426,200 23,337,741 9,018,460 2,692,758 25,857,212 247,945,134
Contributions 310,954 397,776 622,869 102,616 55,722 308,952 1,798,889

Unfunded -                              -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               -                                 
Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 ($1,408,850) $25,000 ($2,019,889) $633,850 $2,769,889 $0

Page 5



  2020 - 2029 PROJECT PLAN
SUMMARY

                                                                               2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 TOTAL

STRUCTURES

STREETS MASTER PLAN - TAB 3

Funding Requested 14,733,666$           19,983,000$          13,063,000$         33,345,000$         9,363,000$           34,259,000$             124,746,666$            

City Funding Provided
Annual Budget 23,927                    1,170,000              270,000                120,000                170,500                1,180,750                 2,935,177                  
TSL Interest 1,189,026               1,006,553              759,678                758,660                810,000                3,850,000                 8,373,918                  
Civic Amenity Fund 6,968,093               1,616,530              3,940,959             10,256,000           4,906,250             5,309,750                 32,997,582                
Marine Drive Amenity 9,833                      -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               9,833                         
Infrastructure Fund 925,108                  613,000                 613,000                613,000                313,000                1,565,000                 4,642,108                  
LAS Fund 500,000                  -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               500,000                     
Parking Fund -                               -                                 
Transportation DCCs 1,345,740               1,287,000              1,806,750             2,134,000             1,163,250             1,509,750                 9,246,490                  
Sustainable Transportation 87,500                    136,790                 80,000                  80,000                  80,000                  -                               464,290                     
Carbon Fund -                               -                                 
General Reserve 1,624,439               471,650                 2,090,113             3,123,925.43        2,530,000             27,747,141               37,587,269                
City Funding Provided 12,673,666             6,301,524              9,560,500             17,085,586           9,973,000             41,162,391               96,756,666                
Contributions 2,060,000               5,035,000              2,875,000             15,740,000           1,390,000             890,000                    27,990,000                
Total Funding Provided 14,733,666             11,336,524            12,435,500           32,825,586           11,363,000           42,052,391               124,746,666              

Unfunded

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 ($8,646,476) ($627,500) ($519,414) $2,000,000 $7,793,391 $0

PARKS MASTER PLAN- TAB 4

Funding Requested 4,084,000$             2,609,000$            5,724,000$           5,911,500$           3,354,000$           7,360,000$               29,042,500$              

City Funding Provided
Annual Budget 2,509,000               559,000                 324,000                474,000                2,054,000             5,041,250                 10,961,250                
TSL Interest -                               -                                 
Civic Amenity Fund 956,873                  1,006,500              2,801,250             2,962,500             1,300,000             1,700,000                 10,727,123                
Marine Drive Amenity Reserve -                               -                                 
Infrastructure Fund -                               -                                 
Parks DCC Fund 569,250                  643,500                 2,598,750             2,475,000             -                            618,750                    6,905,250                  
Lower Lonsdale Amenity 8,877                      -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               8,877                         
General Reserve 400,000                    400,000                     
City Funding Provided 4,044,000               2,209,000              5,724,000             5,911,500             3,354,000             7,760,000                 29,002,500                
Contributions 40,000                    -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               40,000                       
Total Funding Provided 4,084,000               2,209,000              5,724,000             5,911,500             3,354,000             7,760,000                 29,042,500                

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 ($400,000) $0 $0 $0 $400,000 $0

PUBLIC ART PROGRAM - TAB 5

Funding Requested 171,822$                85,000$                 85,000$                85,000$                85,000$                425,000$                  936,822$                   

City Funding Provided
Public Art Fund 86,822                    85,000                   85,000                  85,000                  85,000                  425,000                    851,822                     
Annual Budget -                               -                                 
Lower Lonsdale Amenity Reserve Fund -                               -                                 
Civic Amenity Reserve -                               -                                 
General Reserve Fundget 85,000                    -                               85,000                       
City Funding Provided 171,822                  85,000                   85,000                  85,000                  85,000                  425,000                    936,822                     
Contributions -                              -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               -                                 
Total Funding Provided 171,822                  85,000                   85,000                  85,000                  85,000                  425,000                    936,822                     

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL Structures
Funding Required 18,989,488$           $22,677,000 $18,872,000 $39,341,500 $12,802,000 $42,044,000 154,725,988$            
Funding provided 16,889,488 8,595,524 15,369,500 23,082,086 13,412,000 49,347,391 126,695,988

Contributions 2,100,000 5,035,000 2,875,000 15,740,000 1,390,000 890,000 28,030,000
Unfunded -                              -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               -                                 

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 ($9,046,476) ($627,500) ($519,414) $2,000,000 $8,193,391 $0

Page 6



  2020 - 2029 PROJECT PLAN
SUMMARY

                                                                               2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 TOTAL
EQUIPMENT
GENERAL EQUIPMENT - TAB 6

Funding Requested 575,000$                568,950$               652,000$              660,950$              758,300$              2,139,100$               5,354,300$                

City Funding Provided
Annual Budget 434,898                  341,317                 554,349                493,091.60           639,013.10           1,684,909                 4,147,578                  
General Equipment Fund 47,968                    13,499                   -                            -                            21,636                  -                               83,103                       
General Reserve 50,000                  -                               50,000                       
City Funding Provided 482,866                  354,816                 554,349                493,092                710,649                1,684,909                 4,280,681                  
Contributions 92,134                    164,134                 97,651                  167,858                97,651                  454,191                    1,073,619                  
Total Funding Provided 575,000                  518,950                 652,000                660,950                808,300                2,139,100                 5,354,300                  

Unfunded -                              -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               -                                 

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 ($50,000) $0 $0 $50,000 $0 ($0)

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY - TAB 7

Funding Requested 1,248,953$             860,700$               1,320,500$           1,215,000$           1,157,450$           4,719,950$               10,522,553$              

City Funding Provided
Computer Equipment Fund 62,686                    8,464                     -                            -                            20,918                  -                               92,068                       
Annual Budget 640,917                  288,886                 1,156,750             1,210,500             980,807                4,442,475                 8,720,335                  
General Reserve 470,000                  -                             100,000                -                            518,000                200,000                    1,288,000                  
General Equipment -                               -                                 
TSL Interest -                               -                                 
City Funding Provided 1,173,603               297,350                 1,256,750             1,210,500             1,519,725             4,642,475                 10,100,403                
Contributions 75,350                    45,350                   63,750                  4,500                    155,725                77,475                      422,150                     
Total Funding Provided 1,248,953               342,700                 1,320,500             1,215,000             1,675,450             4,719,950                 10,522,553                

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 ($518,000) $0 $0 $518,000 $0 $0

ENGINEERING EQUIPMENT - TAB 8

Funding Requested 468,000                  876,000                 681,000                665,000                505,000                3,709,000                 6,904,000                  

City Funding Provided
Engineering Equipment Fund 468,000                  876,000                 681,000                665,000                505,000                3,709,000                 6,904,000                  
General Reserve -                               -                                 
TSLI -                               -                                 
City Funding Provided 468,000                  876,000                 681,000                665,000                505,000                3,709,000                 6,904,000                  
Contributions -                              -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               -                                 
Total Funding Provided 468,000                  876,000                 681,000                665,000                505,000                3,709,000                 6,904,000                  

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FIRE EQUIPMENT - TAB 9

Funding Requested 1,115,000$             1,690,000$            215,000$              590,000$              70,000$                2,770,000$               6,450,000$                
General Reserve Fundget 429,802                  -                               429,802                     
TSL Interest -                              -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               -                                 
Fire Equipment Fund 685,198                  1,690,000              215,000                590,000                70,000                  2,770,000                 6,020,198                  
City Funding Provided 1,115,000               1,690,000              215,000                590,000                70,000                  2,770,000                 6,450,000                  
Contributions -                              -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               -                                 
Total Funding Provided 1,115,000               1,690,000              215,000                590,000                70,000                  2,770,000                 6,450,000                  

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BLOCK FUNDING, ON-GOING PROGRAMS & OTHER PROJECTS - TAB 10

Funding Requested 2,946,590$             1,917,217$            1,541,217$           1,135,217$           960,217$              5,511,085$               14,011,543$              

City Funding Provided
Annual Budget 1,246,956               776,652                 971,652                811,652                811,652                4,118,259                 8,736,822                  
Tax Sale Land Interest 383,854                  -                             83,000                  50,000                  -                            -                               516,854                     
Environmental Stewardship Fund 32,842                    -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               32,842                       
General Reserve Fund 570,000                  -                             175,000                150,000                874,288                1,025,000                 2,794,288                  
Child Care Improv Fund 9,323                      -                             -                            -                            -                            -                               9,323                         
Carbon Fund 140,050                  92,142                   90,000                  -                            -                            -                               322,192                     
Sustainable Transportation -                              19,570                   -                            -                            -                            -                               19,570                       
City Funding Provided 2,383,025               888,364                 1,319,652             1,011,652             1,685,940             5,143,259                 12,431,891                
Contributions 563,565                  229,565                 221,565                123,565                73,565                  367,826                    1,579,652                  
Total Funding Provided 2,946,590               1,117,929              1,541,217             1,135,217             1,759,505             5,511,085                 14,011,543                

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 ($799,288) $0 $0 $799,288 $0 ($0)

TOTAL Equipment
Requested 6,353,543$             5,912,867$            4,409,717$           4,266,167$           3,450,967$           $18,849,135 $43,242,396

City Funding provided 5,622,494 4,106,530 4,026,751 3,970,243 4,491,314 17,949,643 40,166,975
Contributions 731,049 439,049 382,966 295,924 326,941 899,492 3,075,421

Excess Funding (Shortfall) $0 ($1,367,288) ($0) ($0) $1,367,288 ($0) $0

TOTAL Requirements
Land 34,513,801             150,000                 300,000                300,000                300,000                1,500,000                 37,063,801                

Buildings 20,923,717             168,232,826          23,935,610           11,140,965           2,114,630             23,396,275               249,744,023              
Structures 18,989,488             22,677,000            18,872,000           39,341,500           12,802,000           42,044,000               154,725,988              
Equipment 6,353,543               5,912,867              4,409,717             4,266,167             3,450,967             18,849,135               43,242,396                

80,780,549$           196,972,693$        47,517,327$         55,048,632$         18,667,597$         85,789,410$             484,776,208$            

Page 7



  2020 - 2029 PROJECT PLAN
LAND AND MAJOR IMPROVEMENTS

Page
Funding 
Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

Various Land Acquisitions
1 - 2 TSL Princ Strategic Land Acquisition 3,500,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    3,500,000         

3,500,000$       -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  3,500,000$       

Parks Acquisition - DCC Bylaw Commitment

1 - 3
Park DCC / 

Gen. Res. Provision for Park Acquisition - DCC 10,000,000       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    10,000,000       
10,000,000$     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  10,000,000$     

Major Investments
1 - 4 Aff Hsing Afforable Housing Reserve 5,688,801         50,000              200,000            200,000            200,000            1,000,000         7,338,801         

External Provision for External Funding and Contributions 15,000,000       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    15,000,000       
20,688,801$     50,000$            200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          1,000,000$       22,338,801$     

Cemetery
1 - 5 Cemetery City Cemetery Program 200,000            100,000            100,000            100,000            100,000            500,000            1,100,000         
1 - 6 Cemetery Cemetery Accessible Public Restroom and Staff Facility 125,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    125,000            

325,000$          100,000$          100,000$          100,000$          100,000$          500,000$          1,225,000$       

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 34,513,801$     150,000$          300,000$          300,000$          300,000$          1,500,000$       37,063,801$     

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 15,000,000$     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  15,000,000$     

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 19,513,801$     150,000$          300,000$          300,000$          300,000$          1,500,000$       22,063,801$     

Page 8



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
BUILDINGS

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

Summary of Building Projects

FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS
Capital Maintenance 2,182,400          2,759,115         2,222,110         1,133,565         902,430            3,289,275         12,488,895       
Harry Jerome CRC 13,140,058        161,034,861     21,042,100       6,386,000         1,190,800         -                    202,793,819     
Proposed New Projects 5,601,259          4,438,850         671,400            3,621,400         21,400              20,107,000       34,461,309       
TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED 20,923,717$      168,232,826$   23,935,610$     11,140,965$     2,114,630$       23,396,275$     249,744,023$   

CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital Maintenance 260,954             397,776            622,869            102,616            55,722              308,952            1,748,889         
Harry Jerome CRC -                     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Proposed New Projects 50,000               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    50,000              
TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 310,954$           397,776$          622,869$          102,616$          55,722$            308,952$          1,798,889$       

NET FUNDING REQUESTED
Capital Maintenance 1,921,446          2,361,339         1,599,241         1,030,949         846,708            2,980,323         10,740,006       
Harry Jerome CRC 13,140,058        161,034,861     21,042,100       6,386,000         1,190,800         -                    202,793,819     
Proposed New Projects 5,551,259          4,438,850         671,400            3,621,400         21,400              20,107,000       34,411,309       
TOTAL CITY FUNDING REQUESTED 20,612,763$      167,835,050$   23,312,741$     11,038,349$     2,058,908$       23,087,323$     247,945,134$   

Page 9



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
BUILDINGS

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

Page Funding Source Capital Maintenance

2 - 4
Annual Bud / Gen 

Build. Maintenance & Replacement for Civic Centre 222,560             252,520            342,400            38,520              56,710              247,170            1,159,880         

2 - 6
Ann. Budget / 

Justice Maintenance & Replacement for Gerry Brewer Building 212,046             323,224            506,131            83,384              45,278              251,048            1,421,111         

2 - 6 External
Maintenance & Replacement for Gerry Brewer Building - 
Required outside funding 260,954             397,776            622,869            102,616            55,722              308,952            1,748,889         

2 - 8 Ann. Budget Maintenance & Replacement for Fire Hall 113,955             117,165            51,895              25,145              46,545              296,925            651,630            

2 - 10 Ann. Budget
Maintenance & Replacement for City Owned/Non-City Used 
Buildings 393,760             688,545            60,990              47,615              48,150              233,795            1,472,855         

2 - 12 Ann. Budget Maintenance & Replacement for Parks Buildings 89,880               89,880              89,880              73,830              73,830              369,150            786,450            

2 - 14 Ann. Budget Maintenance & Replacement for Operations Centre 74,365               33,705              47,615              15,515              26,215              131,075            328,490            

2 - 16 Ann. Budget Maintenance & Replacement for Civic Library 89,880               96,300              20,330              151,940            14,980              201,160            574,590            

2 - 18 Ann. Budget The Shipyards - Lot 3 Building Maintenance 160,000             160,000            160,000            160,000            160,000            800,000            1,600,000         

North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission

2 - 19 Ann. Budget Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre 75,000               75,000              75,000              75,000              -                    -                    300,000            

2 - 20 Ann. Budget Memorial Community Recreation Centre 15,000               15,000              15,000              15,000              -                    -                    60,000              

2 - 21 Ann. Budget  Mickey McDougall Community Recreation Centre        15,000               15,000              15,000              15,000              -                    -                    60,000              

2 - 22 Ann. Budget Centennial Theatre 110,000             265,000            140,000            280,000            325,000            200,000            1,320,000         

2 - 24 Ann. Budget John Braithwaite Community Centre 75,000               30,000              75,000              50,000              50,000              250,000            530,000            

2 - 26 Ann. Budget
Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Minor 4-year Pool 
Shutdown 75,000               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    75,000              

2 - 28  General Res. Harry Jerome Complex - Major Repairs              200,000             200,000                       -                         -                         -   -                    400,000            

TOTAL REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 2,182,400$        2,759,115$       2,222,110$       1,133,565$       902,430$          3,289,275$       12,488,895$     

CONTRIBUTIONS 260,954$           397,776$          622,869$          102,616$          55,722$            308,952$          1,748,889$       

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 1,921,446$        2,361,339$       1,599,241$       1,030,949$       846,708$          2,980,323$       10,740,006$     

Major Renovation

Harry Jerome CRC

2 - 27 Civic Amenity - HJ Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre         10,825,058      161,034,861        21,042,100          6,386,000          1,190,800 -                    200,478,819     

2 - 29 Civic Amenity - HJ Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands Site Development Plan              150,000                       -                         -                         -                         -   -                    150,000            

2 - 50 Civic Amenity - HJ HJ Precinct Related Relocation Expenses           2,165,000                       -                         -                         -                         -   -                    2,165,000         

TOTAL REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 13,140,058$      161,034,861$   21,042,100$     6,386,000$       1,190,800$       -$                  202,793,819$   

CONTRIBUTIONS -$                   -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 13,140,058$      161,034,861$   21,042,100$     6,386,000$       1,190,800$       -$                  202,793,819$   

Page 10



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
BUILDINGS

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

Page Funding Source Proposed New Projects 
Library

2 - 31 Ann. Budget Room Divider Replacement 135,000             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    135,000            

Shipyards  site

2 - 35 Civic Amenity Shipyard Commons Site Improvements 85,000               50,000              50,000              -                    -                    -                    185,000            

2 - 36
General Bud. - 

NEW
Shipyards & Waterfront Operations (previously known as Central 
Waterfront Public Realm) 2,020,000          -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2,020,000         

2 - 37 Civic Amenity Shipyard Commons Branding and Marketing Start Up 25,000               25,000              -                    -                    -                    -                    50,000              

City

2 - 38 Civic Amenity Lonsdale Quay Public Realm -                     480,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    480,000            

2 - 39
General Bud. - 

NEW 2025 New North Shore Neighborhood House Facility 115,000             -                    -                    -                    -                    20,000,000       20,115,000       

2 - 41
General Bud. - 

NEW Civic Centre Addition Feasibility Study -                     25,000              -                    3,000,000         -                    -                    3,025,000         

2 - 42 Ann. Budget Fire Hall Vestibule 100,000             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    100,000            

2 - 43
General Bud. - 

NEW Civic Centre Improvements 331,700             58,850              21,400              21,400              21,400              107,000            561,750            

2 - 45
General Bud. - 

NEW Replacement of City Hall Single Glazed Windows 50,000               550,000            600,000            600,000            -                    -                    1,800,000         

2 - 46 Civic Amenity Burrard Dry Dock Electrical Building -                     350,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    350,000            

2 - 47 Civic Amenity PGE Station Provision -                     400,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    400,000            

2 - 48 Heritage Heritage Reserve Fund 89,559               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    89,559              

2 - 49 Civic Amenity Child Care Capital Program (City Facilities) 2,500,000          2,500,000         -                    -                    -                    5,000,000         

2 - 51 Civic Amenity Civic Centre 13th Street Forecourt Improvements 100,000             -                    100,000            

2 - 51 External Civic Centre 13th Street Forecourt Improvements - ROF 50,000               -                    50,000              

TOTAL REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 5,601,259$        4,438,850$       671,400$          3,621,400$       21,400$            20,107,000$     34,461,309$     

CONTRIBUTIONS 50,000$             -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  50,000$            

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 5,551,259$        4,438,850$       671,400$          3,621,400$       21,400$            20,107,000$     34,411,309$     

Base Program
DCC's Fund
Dedicated Fund
New Initiatives 

Page 11



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
STRUCTURES SUMMARY

                                                                            
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

Summary of Structure Projects

FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS
Streets and Transportation 14,733,666             19,983,000             13,063,000             33,345,000             9,363,000               34,259,000             124,746,666           
Parks 4,084,000               2,609,000               5,724,000               5,911,500               3,354,000               7,360,000               29,042,500             
Public Art 171,822                  85,000                    85,000                    85,000                    85,000                    425,000                  936,822                  
TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED 18,989,488$           22,677,000$           18,872,000$           39,341,500$           12,802,000$           42,044,000$           154,725,988$         

CONTRIBUTIONS
Streets and Transportation 2,060,000               5,035,000               2,875,000               15,740,000             1,390,000               890,000                  27,990,000             
Parks 40,000                    -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          40,000                    
Public Art -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 2,100,000$             5,035,000$             2,875,000$             15,740,000$           1,390,000$             890,000$                28,030,000$           

DCC FUNDING
Streets and Transportation 1,345,740               1,287,000               1,806,750               3,564,000               1,163,250               2,920,500               12,087,240             
Parks 569,250                  643,500                  2,598,750               2,475,000               -                          618,750                  6,905,250               
Public Art -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
TOTAL DCC FUNDING 1,914,990$             1,930,500$             4,405,500$             6,039,000$             1,163,250$             3,539,250$             18,992,490$           

NET FUNDING REQUESTED
Streets and Transportation 11,327,926             13,661,000             8,381,250               14,041,000             6,809,750               30,448,500             84,669,426             
Parks 3,474,750               1,965,500               3,125,250               3,436,500               3,354,000               6,741,250               22,097,250             
Public Art 171,822                  85,000                    85,000                    85,000                    85,000                    425,000                  936,822                  
TOTAL CITY FUNDING REQUESTED 14,974,498$           15,711,500$           11,591,500$           17,562,500$           10,248,750$           37,614,750$           107,703,498$         

Page 12



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
TRANSPORTATION AND STREETS

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024  2025-2029 Total

Active Transportation & Safe Mobility

3 - 7 TSL Int. - NEW Existing Infrastructure Safety Improvements 300,000              390,000              390,000             390,000             390,000          1,950,000          3,810,000            

3 - 7 External Existing Infrastructure Safety Improvements - ROF 50,000                50,000                50,000               50,000               50,000            250,000             500,000               

3 - 8 Civic Amenity New Sidewalks to Complete Pedestrian Network 151,500              252,500              252,500             252,500             252,500          1,262,500          2,424,000            

3 - 8 DCC New Sidewalks to Complete Pedestrian Network-DCC 148,500              247,500              247,500             247,500             247,500          1,237,500          2,376,000            

3 - 9 TSL Int./ General Bud. Sidewalk Infill & Reconstruction 170,000              170,000              170,000             170,000             170,000          850,000             1,700,000            

3 - 10 Civic Amenity New Sidewalks on East side St Andrews: Keith Road to 13th Str 220,000              -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     220,000               

3 - 11 Civic Amenity New Sidewalks 400 Block E 2nd Street -                     450,000              -                    -                    -                  -                     450,000               

3 - 12 Civic Amenity Active Transportation Wayfinding Program 150,000              100,000              30,000               30,000               30,000            150,000             490,000               

3 - 13 Annual Bud. Fell Avenue: Slope stability and Retaining Walls -                     750,000              -                    -                    -                  -                     750,000               

3 - 14 Civic Amenity Semisch Greenway (W3rd to Semisch Park) 50,500                151,500              -                    -                    -                  -                     202,000               

3 - 14 DCC Semisch Greenway (W3rd to Semisch Park) - DCC 49,500                148,500              -                    -                    -                  -                     198,000               

3 - 15 Civic Amenity Priority Mobility Network Improvements 850,000              227,250              883,750             2,146,250          656,500          -                     4,763,750            

3 - 15 External Priority Mobility Network Improvements - ROF 600,000              600,000              2,050,000          1,900,000          1,200,000       -                     6,350,000            

3 - 15 DCC Priority Mobility Network Improvements - DCC -                     222,750              866,250             2,103,750          643,500          -                     3,836,250            

3 - 18 Civic Amenity
East Keith Road Multi-Modal Corridor Improvements, East Grand to 
Brooksbank -                     -                      -                    300,000             -                  -                     300,000               

3 - 19 Civic Amenity Covered Bike Shelter & Secured Bike Parking -                     -                      25,000               50,000               50,000            40,000               165,000               

3 - 20 Civic Amenity Micro Mobility (E-Bike Docking) 50,000                50,000                -                    -                    -                  -                     100,000               

3 - 21 Civic Amenity Active & Safe Routes to School Implementation 200,000              300,000              50,000               50,000               50,000            250,000             900,000               

3 - 22 Civic Amenity Casano Loutet Overpass 847,726              -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     847,726               

3 - 22 External Casano/Loutet Overpass - ROF 1,275,000           -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     1,275,000            

3 - 22 DCC Casano Loutet Overpass - DCC 830,940              -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     830,940               

3 - 23 Civic Amenity - NEW Upper Levels Greenway - Lonsdale to Lynn Valley Road 50,500                505,000              -                    -                    -                  -                     555,500               

3 - 23 External Upper Levels Greenway  - ROF -                     2,000,000           -                    -                    -                  -                     2,000,000            

3 - 23 DCC Upper Levels Greenway - Lonsdale to Lynn Valley Road - DCC 49,500                495,000              -                    -                    -                  -                     544,500               

3 - 24 Civic Amenity - NEW Upper Levels Greenway - Lonsdale to Westview -                     -                      505,000             -                    -                  -                     505,000               

3 - 24 External Upper Levels Greenway  - ROF -                     -                      600,000             -                    -                  -                     600,000               

3 - 24 DCC Upper Levels Greenway - Lonsdale to Westview - DCC -                     -                      495,000             -                    -                  -                     495,000               

3 - 25 Civic Amenity Queensbury Avenue Greenway Connection -                     -                      -                    350,000             -                  -                     350,000               

3 - 25 External Queensbury Avenue Greenway Connection -ROF -                     -                      -                    650,000             -                  -                     650,000               

3 - 26 TSL Int. - NEW Cloverley Access Management Adjustments 30,000                80,000                -                    -                    -                  -                     110,000               

Page 13



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
TRANSPORTATION AND STREETS

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024  2025-2029 Total

3 - 27 Civic Amenity Installation of Accessible Pedestrian Signal Units 35,000                35,000                35,000               35,000               35,000            175,000             350,000               

3 - 29 Civic Amenity Pedestrian Scale Lighting - Green Necklace 250,000              650,000              -                    -                    -                  -                     900,000               

3 - 30 Civic Amenity Pedestrian and Roadway Lighting Implementation 151,500              176,750              202,000             227,250             227,250          1,136,250          2,121,000            

3 - 30 DCC Pedestrian and Roadway Lighting Implementation - DCC 148,500              173,250              198,000             222,750             222,750          1,113,750          2,079,000            

3 - 32 Civic Amenity New Traffic Signals 995,000              940,000              1,010,000          1,040,000          1,010,000       5,000,000          9,995,000            

3 - 34 Civic Amenity New Pedestrian Crossing Facilities 300,000              685,000              745,000             670,000             500,000          1,500,000          4,400,000            

3 - 79 Civic Amenity Central Lonsdale Wayfinding 30,000                -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     30,000                 
Total - Active Transportation & Safe Mobility 7,983,666$         9,850,000$         8,805,000$        10,885,000$      5,735,000$     14,915,000$      58,173,666$        

Transit Improvement Program

3 - 36 General Bud. - NEW Transit Stop Improvements 65,000                65,000                65,000               65,000               65,000            325,000             650,000               

3 - 36 External Transit Stop Improvements - ROF 65,000                65,000                65,000               65,000               65,000            325,000             650,000               

3 - 37 Civic Amenity City Transit Shelter Program -                     -                      40,000               20,000               20,000            40,000               120,000               

3 - 37 External City Transit Shelter Program - ROF -                     -                      40,000               20,000               20,000            40,000               120,000               

3 - 38 General Bud. - NEW Bus Speed and Reliability 50,000                50,000                50,000               50,000               50,000            250,000             500,000               

3 - 38 External Bus Speed and Reliability - ROF 50,000                50,000                50,000               50,000               50,000            250,000             500,000               
Total - Transit Improvements Program 230,000$            230,000$            310,000$           270,000$           270,000$        1,230,000$        2,540,000$          

Traffic Engineering Program

3 - 39 General Bud. - NEW Traffic Signal System Upgrades 250,000              180,000              470,000             300,000             300,000          2,500,000          4,000,000            

3 - 41 General Bud. - NEW Traffic Signal Pre-Emption for Fire Emergency Vehicles 80,000                80,000                80,000               -                    -                  -                     240,000               

3 - 43 General Bud. Street Light and Traffic Signal Aging Pole Replacement 350,000              250,000              50,000               50,000               50,000            500,000             1,250,000            

3 - 45 Annual Bud. Traffic Signal LED Replacement -                     300,000              -                    -                    -                  -                     300,000               

3 - 46 General Bud. - NEW City-Wide LED Streetlight upgrade 150,000              250,000              250,000             -                    -                  -                     650,000               

3 - 47 Civic Amenity Moodyville Traffic Signals 121,200              -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     121,200               

3 - 47 DCC Moodyville Traffic Signals - DCC 118,800              -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     118,800               

3 - 48 General Bud. - NEW Street Lighting Central Management System -                     100,000              -                    -                    -                  -                     100,000               
Total - Traffic Engineering Program 1,070,000$         1,160,000$         850,000$           350,000$           350,000$        3,000,000$        6,780,000$          

Public Realm and Streetscapes Program

3 - 49 General Bud. Street Banner And Furnishing Program 60,000                35,000                60,000               35,000               60,000            225,000             475,000               

3 - 50 General Bud. - NEW Seasonal Decorations - Lonsdale Street Light Poles -                     -                      -                    -                    -                  85,000               85,000                 

3 - 51 Civic Amenity New Street Activation 25,000                75,000                75,000               75,000               75,000            375,000             700,000               

3 - 52 Annual Bud./TSLI Living City Tree Planting Program 120,000              120,000              120,000             120,000             120,000          600,000             1,200,000            

3 - 52 External Living City Tree Planting Program - ROF 5,000                  5,000                  5,000                 5,000                 5,000              25,000               50,000                 

3 - 53 Civic Amenity Sidewalk Patios - Lower Lonsdale -                     150,000              -                    -                    -                  -                     150,000               

Page 14



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
TRANSPORTATION AND STREETS

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024  2025-2029 Total

3 - 54 Annual Bud. - NEW 200 East 2nd Street - Parking & Streetscape improvements -                     -                      -                    -                    50,500            -                     50,500                 

3 - 54 DCC 200 East 2nd Street - Parking & Streetscape improvements-DCC -                     -                      -                    -                    49,500            -                     49,500                 

3 - 55 Annual Bud. - NEW 100 East 2nd Street - Parking & Streetscape Improvements -                     -                      -                    -                    -                  227,250             227,250               

3 - 55 DCC 100 East 2nd Street - Parking & Streetscape Improvements-DCC -                     -                      -                    -                    -                  222,750             222,750               

3 - 56 Annual Bud. - NEW 100 East 1st Street - Streetscape Improvements -                     -                      -                    -                    -                  353,500             353,500               

3 - 56 DCC 100 East 1st Street - Streetscape Improvements - DCC -                     -                      -                    -                    -                  346,500             346,500               
Total - Public Realm and Streetscapes Program 210,000$            385,000$            260,000$           235,000$           360,000$        2,460,000$        3,910,000$          

Major Projects

3 - 57
Civic Amenity - BASE / 

Marine Dr Amenity Mosquito Creek Bridge 2,400,000           -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     2,400,000            

3 - 58 Civic Amenity Marine Drive Bridge Replacement over Mackay Creek -                     -                      -                    1,010,000          -                  -                     1,010,000            

3 - 58 External Marine Drive Bridge Replacement over Mackay Creek - ROF -                     -                      -                    4,000,000          -                  -                     4,000,000            

3 - 58 DCC Marine Drive Bridge Replacement over Mackay Creek - DCC -                     -                      -                    990,000             -                  -                     990,000               

3 - 59 Civic Amenity Lonsdale Corridor Transit & Safety Improvements (Esplanade to 29th) -                     -                      -                    1,400,000          -                  -                     1,400,000            

3 - 59 External
Lonsdale Corridor Transit & Safety Improvements (Esplanade to 29th) 
- ROF -                     -                      -                    400,000             -                  -                     400,000               

3 - 60 General Bud. - NEW Marine-Main Corridor Improvements -                     350,000              -                    2,600,000          -                  -                     2,950,000            

3 - 61 External Marine-Main Corridor Improvements - ROF -                     250,000              -                    8,600,000          -                  -                     8,850,000            

3 - 62 Civic Amenity Esplanade Complete Streets 100,000              3,000,000           -                    -                    -                  -                     3,100,000            

3 - 62 External Esplanade Complete Streets - ROF -                     2,000,000           -                    -                    -                  -                     2,000,000            
Total - Major Projects 2,500,000$         5,600,000$         -$                  19,000,000$      -$                -$                   27,100,000$        

Pavement and Bridge Management

3 - 63 TSL Int. Traffic Signs and Pavement Markings 100,000              100,000              100,000             100,000             100,000          500,000             1,000,000            

3 - 64 TSL Int. Major Structure Rehabilitation 75,000                75,000                75,000               75,000               75,000            375,000             750,000               

3 - 65 TSL Int. Integrated Survey Monument Update 35,000                -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     35,000                 

3 - 66
General Res TSLI/ 

Infrastr. Res Pavement Management: Streets and Lanes 1,300,000           2,000,000           2,000,000          2,000,000          2,000,000       10,000,000        19,300,000          

3 - 68 TSL Int. Pavement Condition Testing 25,000                75,000                25,000               25,000               75,000            175,000             400,000               
Total - Pavement Management 1,535,000$         2,250,000$         2,200,000$        2,200,000$        2,250,000$     11,050,000$      21,485,000$        

Page 15



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
TRANSPORTATION AND STREETS

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024  2025-2029 Total

Local Area Services

3 - 69 LAS Provision for Local Area Services - City Share 500,000              -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     500,000               
Total - Local Area Services 500,000$            -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                -$                   500,000$             

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED - ENGINEERING DEP 14,028,666$       19,475,000$       12,425,000$      32,940,000$      8,965,000$     32,655,000$      120,488,666$       

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 2,045,000$         5,020,000$         2,860,000$        15,740,000$      1,390,000$     890,000$           27,945,000$        

TOTAL DCC STREETS AND TRANSPORTATION 1,345,740$         1,287,000$         1,806,750$        3,564,000$        1,163,250$     2,920,500$        12,087,240$        

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 10,637,926$       13,168,000$       7,758,250$        13,636,000$      6,411,750$     28,844,500$      80,456,426$        

Planning and Development

3 - 70 General Bud. - NEW Rapid Transit Planning Office -                     -                      150,000             150,000             150,000          750,000             1,200,000            

3 - 71 General Bud. - NEW Community & School Active Travel Planning 175,000              168,000              168,000             100,000             93,000            479,000             1,183,000            

3 - 71 External Community & School Active Travel Planning-ROF 15,000                15,000                15,000               -                    -                  -                     45,000                 

3 - 73 Sust. Transport Mobility Plan Implementation - Curbside Management -                     -                      80,000               80,000               80,000            -                     240,000               

3 - 74 General Bud. - NEW Mobility Plan 100,000              -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     100,000               

3 - 75 TSL Int. - NEW Great Streets - Corridor Studies 150,000              150,000              150,000             -                    -                  -                     450,000               

3 - 75 External Great Streets - Corridor Studies - ROF -                     -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     -                       

3 - 77
 Sust Transport -New 

& Gen Bud
INSTPP Implementation (Previously known as North Shore 
Transportation Improvements) 175,000              175,000              75,000               75,000               75,000            375,000             950,000               

3 - 78 General Bud. - NEW Bicycle Master Plan Update & Bicycle Route Conceptual Design 90,000                -                      -                    -                    -                  -                     90,000                 
Total - Planning 705,000$            508,000$            638,000$           405,000$           398,000$        1,604,000$        4,258,000$          

TOTAL FUNDING REQUEST - PLANNING DEP 705,000$            508,000$            638,000$           405,000$           398,000$        1,604,000$        4,258,000$          

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 15,000$              15,000$              15,000$             -$                  -$                -$                   45,000$               

TOTAL DCC STREETS AND TRANSPORTATION

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 690,000$            493,000$            623,000$           405,000$           398,000$        1,604,000$        4,213,000$          

Page 16



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
TRANSPORTATION AND STREETS

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024  2025-2029 Total

TOTAL FUNDING REQUEST IN PROJECT SHEETS 14,733,666$       19,983,000$       13,063,000$      33,345,000$      9,363,000$     34,259,000$      124,746,666$       

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 2,060,000$         5,035,000$         2,875,000$        15,740,000$      1,390,000$     890,000$           27,990,000$        

TOTAL DCC STREETS AND TRANSPORTATION 1,345,740$         1,287,000$         1,806,750$        3,564,000$        1,163,250$     2,920,500$        12,087,240$        

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 11,327,926$       13,661,000$       8,381,250$        14,041,000$      6,809,750$     30,448,500$      84,669,426$        

Base Program

DCC's Fund

Dedicated Fund

New Initiatives 

Page 17



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
PARKS AND ENVIRONMENT

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

Park Specific

4 - 3 Ann. Budget Greenwood Park Trail and Forest Restoration 250,000            -                    -                     -                   -                   -                        250,000                

4 - 4 Ann. Budget Sutherland Field Renovation 1,600,000         -                    -                     -                   -                   -                        1,600,000             
4 - 4 External Sutherland Field Renovation - ROF 40,000              -                    -                     -                   -                   -                        40,000                  

4 - 5 Civic Amenity Temporary Dog Off leash Facilities 200,000            -                    -                     -                   -                   -                        200,000                

4 - 6 Civic Amenity Mahon Park Beach Volleyball 35,000              -                    -                     -                   -                   -                        35,000                  

4 - 7 Civic Amenity Hamersley Park Improvements 353,500            -                    -                     -                   -                   -                        353,500                

4 - 7 DCC Hamersley Park Improvements  - DCC 346,500            -                    -                     -                   -                   -                        346,500                

4 - 8 Ann. Budget St. Andrews Park Infrastructure Replacement 300,000            -                    -                     -                   -                   -                        300,000                

4 - 9
Civic Amenity / LL 

Amenity Waterfront Park Master Plan & Implementation 227,250            -                    2,525,000          2,525,000        -                   -                        5,277,250             

4 - 9 DCC Waterfront Park Master Plan & Implementation - DCC 222,750            -                    2,475,000          2,475,000        -                   -                        5,172,750             

4 - 10 Civic Amenity 1600 Eastern Avenue Park -                    555,500            -                     -                   -                   -                        555,500                

4 - 10 DCC 1600 Eastern Avenue Park - DCC -                    544,500            -                     -                   -                   -                        544,500                

4 - 11 Civic Amenity Green Necklace Outdoor Fitness Equipment Stations -                    400,000            -                     -                   -                   -                        400,000                

4 - 12 Civic Amenity Victoria Park Washroom -                    200,000            -                     -                   -                   -                        200,000                

4 - 13 Civic Amenity St. Andrews Park Washrooms -                    101,000            -                     -                   -                   -                        101,000                

4 - 13 DCC St. Andrews Park Washrooms - DCC -                    99,000              -                     -                   -                   -                        99,000                  

4 - 14 Civic Amenity Sunrise Park Trail Improvements -                    -                    126,250             -                   -                   -                        126,250                

4 - 14 DCC Sunrise Park Trail Improvements - DCC -                    -                    123,750             -                   -                   -                        123,750                

4 - 15 Civic Amenity Casano Park Trail & Habitat Improvements -                    -                    -                     400,000           -                   -                        400,000                

4 - 16 Ann. Budget Mahon Park Playground and Spray Park Replacement -                    -                    -                     250,000           1,800,000        -                        2,050,000             

4 - 17 Civic Amenity Park Picnic Shelters -                    -                    -                     -                   850,000           -                        850,000                

4 - 18 Civic Amenity High Place Park Development -                    -                    -                     -                   250,000           -                        250,000                

4 - 19 Ann. Budget Wagg Park Playground Replacement -                    -                    -                     -                   100,000           550,000                650,000                

4 - 20 Civic Amenity Gravel Sports Field Turf Conversion -                    -                    -                     -                   200,000           1,700,000             1,900,000             

4 - 21 Ann. Budget Confederation Field Turf Replacement -                    -                    -                     -                   -                   900,000                900,000                

4 - 22 Ann. Budget Derek Inman Park Renovations -                    -                    -                     -                   -                   631,250                631,250                

4 - 22 DCC Derek Inman Park Renovations - DCC -                    -                    -                     -                   -                   618,750                618,750                

4 - 23 Ann. Budget Tempe Heights Park Playground Replacement -                    -                    -                     -                   -                   670,000                670,000                

4 - 24 Ann. Budget Loutet Park Playground Replacement -                    -                    -                     -                   -                   670,000                670,000                

Page 18



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
PARKS AND ENVIRONMENT

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

4 - 25 Ann. Budget Fen Burdett Turf Replacement -                    -                    -                     -                   -                   900,000                900,000                

4 - 26 Ann. Budget Victoria Park Master Plan -                    -                    -                     -                   -                   250,000                250,000                

4 - 36 Civic Amenity - NEW Public School Playground Funding 150,000            150,000            150,000             37,500             -                   -                        487,500                

Total - Park Specific 3,725,000$       2,050,000$       5,400,000$        5,687,500$      3,200,000$      6,890,000$           26,952,500$         

City Wide Programs

4 - 27 Ann. Budget Play Equipment Replacement 35,000              35,000              -                     -                   -                   -                        70,000                  

4 - 28 Ann. Budget Natural Area and Urban Forest Management 100,000            100,000            100,000             -                   -                   -                        300,000                

4 - 29 Ann. Budget Chafer Beetle Turf Restoration 45,000              45,000              45,000               45,000             -                   -                        180,000                

4 - 30 Ann. Budget Wooden Bridge and Stair Replacement 25,000              25,000              25,000               25,000             -                   -                        100,000                

4 - 31 Ann. Budget Grass Sports Field Renovations 75,000              75,000              75,000               75,000             75,000             75,000                  450,000                

4 - 32 Ann. Budget Irrigation System Upgrades 34,000              34,000              34,000               34,000             34,000             170,000                340,000                

4 - 33 Ann. Budget Park & Greenways Trail Resurfacing 10,000              10,000              10,000               10,000             10,000             50,000                  100,000                

4 - 34 Ann. Budget Parks Furnishings and Signage 35,000              35,000              35,000               35,000             35,000             175,000                350,000                

4 - 35 Ann. Budget Parks Master Plan Update -                    200,000            -                     -                   -                   -                        200,000                
Total - City Wide Programs 359,000$          559,000$          324,000$           224,000$         154,000$         470,000$              2,090,000$           

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 4,084,000$       2,609,000$       5,724,000$        5,911,500$      3,354,000$      7,360,000$           29,042,500$         

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 40,000$            -$                  -$                   -$                 -$                 -$                      40,000$                

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS - DCC FUNDING 569,250$          643,500$          2,598,750$        2,475,000$      -$                 618,750$              6,905,250$           

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 3,474,750$       1,965,500$       3,125,250$        3,436,500$      3,354,000$      6,741,250$           22,097,250$         

Base Program

DCC's Fund

Dedicated Fund

New Initiatives 

Page 19



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
PUBLIC ART

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

5 - 2 General Bud. Civic Public Art Program 85,000           85,000           85,000           85,000           85,000           425,000         850,000         

5 - 3 Public Art Provisions of 1% of revenue from LL Land Sales to Public Art Projects 86,822           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 86,822           
TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 171,822$       85,000$         85,000$         85,000$         85,000$         425,000$       936,822$       

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 171,822$       85,000$         85,000$         85,000$         85,000$         425,000$       936,822$       

Page 20



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
EQUIPMENT SUMMARY

                                                                            
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

Summary of Equipment Projects

FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS
General Equipment 575,000                    568,950                  652,000                  660,950                  758,300                  2,139,100               5,354,300               
Information Technology Equipment 1,248,953                 860,700                  1,320,500               1,215,000               1,157,450               4,719,950               10,522,553             
Engineering Equipment 468,000                    876,000                  681,000                  665,000                  505,000                  3,709,000               6,904,000               
Fire Equipment 1,115,000                 1,690,000               215,000                  590,000                  70,000                    2,770,000               6,450,000               
Block Funding & Other Projects 2,946,590                 1,917,217               1,541,217               1,135,217               960,217                  5,511,085               14,011,543             
TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED 6,353,543$               5,912,867$             4,409,717$             4,266,167$             3,450,967$             18,849,135$           43,242,396$           

CONTRIBUTIONS
General Equipment 92,134                      164,134                  97,651                    167,858                  97,651                    454,191                  1,073,619               
Information Technology Equipment 75,350                      45,350                    63,750                    4,500                      155,725                  77,475                    422,150                  
Engineering Equipment -                            -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Fire Equipment -                            -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Block Funding & Other Projects 563,565                    229,565                  221,565                  123,565                  73,565                    367,826                  1,579,652               
TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 731,049$                  439,049$                382,966$                295,924$                326,941$                899,492$                3,075,421$             

NET FUNDING REQUESTED
General Equipment 482,866                    404,816                  554,349                  493,092                  660,649                  1,684,909               4,280,681               
Information Technology Equipment 1,173,603                 815,350                  1,256,750               1,210,500               1,001,725               4,642,475               10,100,403             
Engineering Equipment 468,000                    876,000                  681,000                  665,000                  505,000                  3,709,000               6,904,000               
Fire Equipment 1,115,000                 1,690,000               215,000                  590,000                  70,000                    2,770,000               6,450,000               
Block Funding & Other Projects 2,383,025                 1,687,652               1,319,652               1,011,652               886,652                  5,143,259               12,431,891             
TOTAL CITY FUNDING REQUESTED 5,622,494$               5,473,818$             4,026,751$             3,970,243$             3,124,026$             17,949,643$           40,166,975$           

Page 21



  2020-209 PROJECT PLAN
GENERAL EQUIPMENT

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

6 - 2 Annual Bud Furniture and Equipment 107,000         90,950           107,000         90,950           96,300           246,100         738,300         

6 - 4 Gen Equip Gerry Brewer Furniture 47,968           47,968           47,968           47,968           47,968           143,904         383,745         
6 - 4 External Gerry Brewer Furniture - Required Outside Funding 59,032           59,032           59,032           59,032           59,032           177,096         472,255         
6 - 6 Annual Bud Pool Vehicle Replacement 50,000           5,000             50,000           50,000           40,000           155,000         350,000         
6 - 8 Annual Bud Police Pool Vehicle Replacement 26,898           26,898           31,381           20,174           31,381           156,905         293,637         
6 - 8 External Police Pool Vehicles Repl - Required outside Funding 33,102           33,102           38,619           24,827           38,619           193,095         361,364         
6 - 9 Annual Bud Bylaw Vehicles Replacement -                 -                 45,000           -                 -                 -                 45,000           

6 - 10 Annual Bud NVRC Maintenance Vehicles -                 36,000           -                 42,000           -                 42,000           120,000         
6 - 10 External NVRC Maintenance  Vehicles - Required Outside Funding -                 72,000           -                 84,000           -                 84,000           240,000         
6 - 12 Annual Bud NVRC Recreation Program Equipment 183,000         130,000         155,000         225,000         445,000         695,000         1,833,000      
6 - 14 Annual Bud Automated Materials Handling & RFID System Replacements 18,000           18,000           68,000           17,000           -                 196,000         317,000         
6 - 16 Annual Bud Self-Service Payment Renewal -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 20,000           20,000           
6 - 17 Annual Bud A/V Systems Renewal -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 30,000           30,000           
6 - 18 Annual Bud Automated Traffic Counters 50,000           50,000           50,000           -                 -                 -                 150,000         

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 575,000$       568,950$       652,000$       660,950$       758,300$       2,139,100$    5,354,300$    

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 92,134$         164,134$       97,651$         167,858$       97,651$         454,191$       1,073,619$    

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 482,866$       404,816$       554,349$       493,092$       660,649$       1,684,909$    4,280,681$    

Page 22



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
I.T. Department

7 - 3
Annual Bud / Comp 

Equip. User Device Replacements          150,000          150,000          150,000          150,000          150,000 750,000         1,500,000        

7 - 4 Annual Bud Data Centre Infrastructure          125,000            50,000          350,000          250,000          150,000 875,000         1,800,000        

7 - 5 Annual Bud Fibre Infrastructure Improvement            50,000            50,000            50,000            50,000            50,000 250,000         500,000           

7 - 6 General Bud. - NEW Enhanced VOIP Solutions          200,000                    -                      -                      -                      -   -                 200,000           

7 - 7 General Bud. - NEW Open Data & GIS 3D Modeling          120,000          100,000          100,000                    -                      -   200,000         520,000           

7 - 8 General Bud. - NEW Business Intelligence & Reporting          150,000          100,000                    -                      -                      -   -                 250,000           

7 - 9 Annual Bud CNV Website Refresh            50,000                    -              75,000                    -            200,000 650,000         975,000           

7 - 10 Annual Bud - NEW Parks IPS Asset Management                    -                      -            125,000          125,000                    -   -                 250,000           

7 - 11 Annual Bud Data and Workflow Improvements            92,253                    -                      -                      -                      -   -                 92,253             

7 - 12 Annual Bud - NEW Permits Clerk            65,000            68,000                    -                      -                      -   -                 133,000           

7 - 13 Annual Bud Engineering Business Process Owner          100,000                    -                      -                      -                      -   -                 100,000           

7 - 14 Annual Bud - NEW Enterprise Application Lifecycle Planning                    -            120,000          350,000          550,000          350,000 1,600,000      2,970,000        
Total - I.T. Department 1,102,253$    638,000$       1,200,000$    1,125,000$    900,000$       4,325,000$    9,290,253$      

Library

7 - 16 Annual Bud - NEW Integrated Library System (ILS) Renewal -                 50,000           -                 -                 -                 -                 50,000             

7 - 17 Annual Bud Library Website Renewal 5,000             80,000           -                 -                 -                 85,000           170,000           
Total - Library 5,000$           130,000$       -$               -$               -$               85,000$         220,000$         

North Vancouver Museum & Archives

7 - 18 Annual Bud IT Refresh 15,350           7,350             7,750             4,500             5,725             37,475           78,150             

7 - 18 External
Museum & Archives Technology Refresh - Required Outside 
Funding 15,350           7,350             7,750             4,500             5,725             37,475           78,150             

Total - North Vancouver Museum & Archives 30,700$         14,700$         15,500$         9,000$           11,450$         74,950$         156,300$         

Page 23



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission

7 - 19 Annual Bud Facility Desktop Hardware Refresh 21,000           21,000           21,000           21,000           21,000           105,000         210,000           

7 - 21 Annual Bud Perfect Mind Implementation:  Integration Project 10,000           10,000           10,000           -                 10,000           20,000           60,000             

7 - 21 External Perfect Mind Implementation:  Integration Project - ROF 20,000           20,000           20,000           -                 20,000           40,000           120,000           

7 - 22 Annual Bud Network Hardware Replacements -                 -                 -                 30,000           -                 35,000           65,000             

7 - 23 Annual Bud Public Wifi Replacement -                 -                 -                 30,000           -                 35,000           65,000             

7 - 24 Annual Bud - NEW Mobile Device Applications -                 9,000             18,000           -                 -                                    -                 27,000 

7 - 24 External Mobile Device Applications - ROF -                 18,000           36,000           -                 -                 -                 54,000             

7 - 25 Annual Bud VOIP Phone System Replacement -                 -                 -                 -                 65,000                              -                 65,000 

7 - 25 External VOIP Phone System Replacement - Required Outside Funding -                 -                 -                 -                 130,000         -                 130,000           

7 - 26 Annual Bud Website Content Management Replacement 13,000           -                 -                 -                 -                                    -                 13,000 

7 - 26 External Website Content Management Program Upgrade - ROF 26,000           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 26,000             

7 - 27 Annual Bud - NEW Digital Tools Development Plan 7,000             -                 -                 -                 -                                    -                   7,000 

7 - 27 External Digital Tools Development Plan - ROF 14,000           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 14,000             
Total - North Vancouver Recreation Commission 111,000$       78,000$         105,000$       81,000$         246,000$       235,000$       856,000$         

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 1,248,953$    860,700$       1,320,500$    1,215,000$    1,157,450$    4,719,950$    10,522,553$    

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 75,350$         45,350$         63,750$         4,500$           155,725$       77,475$         422,150$         

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 1,173,603$    815,350$       1,256,750$    1,210,500$    1,001,725$    4,642,475$    10,100,403$    

Base Program

DCC's Fund

Dedicated Fund

New Initiatives 

Page 24



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
ENGINEERING EQUIPMENT

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

8 - 2 Eng Equip
Engineering, Parks and Environment Operations Vehicle/Equipment 
Replacement Program 468,000       876,000       681,000       665,000       505,000       3,709,000    6,904,000      

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 468,000$     876,000$     681,000$     665,000$     505,000$     3,709,000$  6,904,000$    

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 468,000$     876,000$     681,000$     665,000$     505,000$     3,709,000$  6,904,000$    

Page 25



  2020-209 PROJECT PLAN
FIRE EQUIPMENT

Page
Funding 
Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

9 - 2
Fire Equip & 

Gen Bud Fire Equipment Replacement Program 1,115,000     1,690,000     215,000        590,000        70,000          2,770,000     6,450,000     

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 1,115,000$   1,690,000$   215,000$      590,000$      70,000$        2,770,000$   6,450,000$   

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 1,115,000$   1,690,000$   215,000$      590,000$      70,000$        2,770,000$   6,450,000$   

Page 26



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
BLOCK FUNDS, ONGOING PROGRAMS AND OTHER PROJECTS

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

Block Funds

10 - 3 Annual Bud. Block Funding - City Used Buildings 100,000        100,000        100,000        100,000        100,000        500,000         1,000,000          

10 - 4 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Non-City Used Building 100,000        100,000        100,000        100,000        100,000        500,000         1,000,000          

10 - 5 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Gerry Brewer Building 29,237          29,237          29,237          29,237          29,237          146,184         292,368            

10 - 5 External Gerry Brewer Building - Required Outside Funding 35,980          35,980          35,980          35,980          35,980          179,901         359,802            

10 - 6 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Information Technology 100,000        100,000        100,000        100,000        100,000        500,000         1,000,000          

10 - 7 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Parks Infrastructure 75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          375,000         750,000            

10 - 8 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Transportation 30,000          30,000          30,000          30,000          30,000          150,000         300,000            

10 - 9 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Engineering Equipment 50,000          50,000          50,000          50,000          50,000          250,000         500,000            

10 - 10 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Waterfront Asset Infrastructure 50,000          50,000          50,000          50,000          50,000          250,000         500,000            

10 - 11 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Shipyards Waterfront 25,000          25,000          50,000          50,000          50,000          250,000         450,000            

10 - 12 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Planning & Development 10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          50,000           100,000            

10 - 13 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Fire Department 50,000          50,000          50,000          50,000          50,000          250,000         500,000            

10 - 13 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Police Equipment 22,415          22,415          22,415          22,415          22,415          112,075         224,150            

10 - 14 External Block Funding - Police Equipment - Required Outside Funding 27,585          27,585          27,585          27,585          27,585          137,925         275,850            

10 - 15 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Library Equipment 20,000          20,000          20,000          20,000          20,000          100,000         200,000            

10 - 15 Annual Bud. Block Funding - Museum and Archives 10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          50,000           100,000            

10 - 16 External Museum & Archives - Required Outside Funding 10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          50,000           100,000            

10 - 17 Annual Bud. Block Funding - NVRC 75,000          75,000          75,000          80,000          80,000          410,000         795,000            

10 - 18 Annual Bud. NVRC Emergency Capital Replacement Fund 30,000          30,000          30,000          35,000          35,000          185,000         345,000            

TOTAL - BLOCK FUNDS 850,217$      850,217$      875,217$      885,217$      885,217$      4,446,085$    8,792,170$        

On-Going Programs

10 - 19 CCCIF Child Care Capital Improvement Fund 9,323            -                -                -                -                -                 9,323                

TOTAL - ON-GOING PROGRAMS 9,323$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$               9,323$              

Other Projects

10 - 21 General Bud. - NEW Economic Development Strategy 70,000          -                -                -                -                -                 70,000              

10 - 22 Economic Impact Assessment of Fixed Link Rapid Transit to North Shore -                -                -                -                -                -                 -                    

10 - 22 External Economic Impact Assessment of FLR - Required Outside Funding 200,000        -                -                -                -                -                 200,000            

10 - 23 General Bud. - NEW City Plaza Programming 25,000          25,000          25,000          -                -                -                 75,000              

10 - 24 TSL Int City Studio Partnership with CapU 30,000          36,000          48,000          50,000          -                -                 164,000            

10 - 24 External City Studio Partership - Required Outside Funding 30,000          36,000          48,000          50,000          -                -                 164,000            

10 - 25 TSL Int Placemaking            40,000            40,000                   -                     -                     -   -                 80,000              

Page 27



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN
BLOCK FUNDS, ONGOING PROGRAMS AND OTHER PROJECTS

Page Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total

10 - 27 TSL Int CNV4ME - School The City Implementation 15,000          15,000          -                -                -                -                 30,000              

10 - 28 TSL Int - NEW Community Engagement 160,000        -                -                -                -                -                 160,000            

10 - 29 General Bud. - NEW Library Services for Lower Lonsdale -                200,000        -                -                -                -                 200,000            

10 - 30 General Bud. - NEW Child Minding for Council Meetings 25,000          25,000          25,000          25,000          25,000          125,000         250,000            

10 - 31 General Bud. - NEW Child Care Strategy Implementation Projects 40,000          -                -                -                -                -                 40,000              

10 - 32 General Bud. - NEW Land Use Studies - OCP Review -                -                -                -                50,000          900,000         950,000            

10 - 33 General Bud. - NEW Special Study, Site Planning and Development -                -                100,000        100,000        -                -                 200,000            

10 - 34
TLS Int / Annual Bud. -

NEW Environmental Strategy Implementation 225,000        125,000        125,000        -                -                -                 475,000            

10 - 34 External Environmental Strategy Implementation - Required Outside Funding -                50,000          50,000          -                -                -                 100,000            

10 - 35
Carbon Fund - NEW 

& Gen Bud. Electric Vehicle Strategy Implementation 205,050        135,000        -                -                -                -                 340,050            

10 - 35 External Electric Vehicle Strategy - Required Outside Funding 100,000        20,000          -                -                -                -                 120,000            

10 - 36 General Bud. - NEW E-Bike and Micromobility Coordinator 75,000          25,000          25,000          25,000          -                -                 150,000            

10 - 36 External E-Bike and Micromobility Coordinator - ROF 50,000          -                -                -                -                -                 50,000              

10 - 37
Enviro Steward /  

Annual Bud. Corporate Climate Action Implementation 150,000        150,000        150,000        -                -                -                 450,000            

10 - 37 External Corporate Climate Action Implementation - Required Outside Funding 50,000          50,000          50,000          -                -                -                 150,000            

10 - 38 Annual Bud. - NEW COR (Certificate of Recognition) 60,000          -                20,000          -                -                40,000           120,000            

10 - 39 Annual Bud. Strategic & Corporate Planning 100,000        100,000        -                -                -                -                 200,000            

10 - 40 TSL Int Community Recreation Strategy 67,000          35,000          -                -                -                -                 102,000            

10 - 41 General Bud. - NEW Review of Human Resources Policy Manual 120,000        -                -                -                -                -                 120,000            

10 - 42 TSL Int - NEW Exempt Compensation Market Review 40,000          -                -                -                -                -                 40,000              

10 - 44 General Bud. - NEW Lonsdale Energy Corporation Renewable Energy Strategy 100,000        -                -                -                -                -                 100,000            

10 - 45 General Bud. - NEW Where Matters 2.0 - Measuring Health Impacts of Built Environment and Policy 25,000          -                -                -                -                -                 25,000              

10 - 46 General Bud. - NEW
CleanBC Better Homes and Home Renovation Rebate Program - Municipal Top-Up 
Rebates 25,000          -                -                -                -                -                 25,000              

10 - 46 External
CleanBC Better Homes and Home Renovation Rebate Program - Municipal Top-Up 
Rebates -Required Outside Funding 60,000          -                -                -                -                -                 60,000              

TOTAL - OTHER PROJECTS 2,087,050$    1,067,000$    666,000$      250,000$      75,000$        1,065,000$    5,210,050$        

TOTAL FUNDING REQUESTED IN PROJECT SHEETS 2,946,590$    1,917,217$    1,541,217$    1,135,217$    960,217$      5,511,085$    14,011,543$      

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 563,565$      229,565$      221,565$      123,565$      73,565$        367,826$       1,579,652$        

NET FUNDING REQUESTED 2,383,025$    1,687,652$    1,319,652$    1,011,652$    886,652$      5,143,259$    12,431,891$      

Page 28



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
                                                                                                                                        

Average for the Year 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Tax Levy 9,953,800$              10,503,800              11,053,800              11,603,800              12,153,800              69,019,000$            124,288,000$                   

Total Available 9,953,800$              10,503,800              11,053,800$            11,603,800$            12,153,800$            69,019,000$            124,288,000$                   
Allocated to :

Tax Sale Land -                               -                                        
Civic Amenity HJCRC 2,600,000                2,600,000                2,600,000                2,600,000                2,600,000                -                               13,000,000                       

General Building -                               -                                        
General Equipment -                               -                                        

Fire Equipment 1,690,000                350,000                   455,000                   350,000                   2,573,239                5,418,239                         
Computer Equipment -                               -                                        

General Reserve 667,302                   566,782                   2,986,513                4,171,108                3,463,620                45,810,294              57,665,619                       
TSLI 116,670                   3,795                       -                               120,465                            

Public Art 85,000                     85,000                     85,000                     85,000                     425,000                   765,000                            
Affordable Housing -                               -                                        

Sustainable Transportation 87,500                     87,500                     87,500                     87,500                     437,500                   787,500                            
Carbon Fund 65,000                     65,000                     65,000                     65,000                     325,001                   585,001                            

Total to Reserves 3,267,302                5,210,952                6,177,808                7,463,608                6,651,120                49,571,034              78,341,824                       

Transfer to Annual Budget 6,686,498$              5,292,848                4,875,992$              4,140,192$              5,502,680$              24,950,646$            45,946,176$                     

ANNUAL BUDGET - Direct Transfer to Capital

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
6,686,498$              5,292,848                4,875,992$              4,140,192$              5,502,680$              19,447,966              45,946,176                       

-                               -                                        
-                               -                                        

Available Balance 6,686,498$              5,292,848                4,875,992$              4,140,192$              5,502,680$              19,447,966$            45,946,176$                     

Withdrawals
Base
Buildings

Capital Maintenance 1,730,801                2,156,993                1,599,241                1,030,949                846,708                   2,980,323                10,345,015                       
Fire Hall Vestibule 100,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               100,000                            

-                               -                                        
Structures -                               -                                        

Traffic & Transportation -                               -                                        
Fell Avenue: Slope stability and Retaining Walls -                               750,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               750,000                            

Traffic Signal LED Replacement -                               300,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               300,000                            
200 East 2nd Street - Parking & Streetscape improvements -                               -                               -                               -                               50,500                     -                               50,500                              
100 East 2nd Street - Parking & Streetscape Improvements -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               227,250                   227,250                            

100 East 1st Street - Streetscape Improvements -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               353,500                   353,500                            
Living City Tree Planting Program 23,927                     120,000                   120,000                   120,000                   120,000                   600,000                   1,103,927                         

Great Streets - Corridor Studies -                           150,000                   -                           -                           -                               150,000                            
Pavement Management: Streets and Lanes (0)                             -                               (0)                                      

-                               -                                        
Parks & Environment -                               -                                        

City Wide Programs 359,000                   559,000                   324,000                   224,000                   154,000                   470,000                   2,090,000                         
Sutherland Field Renovation 1,600,000                -                               1,600,000                         

Replacements and Restoration Projects 550,000                   -                               -                               250,000                   1,900,000                4,571,250                7,271,250                         
-                               -                                        

Equipment -                               -                                        
Over $10,000 -                               -                                        

General 434,898                   341,317                   554,349                   493,092                   639,013                   1,684,909                4,147,578                         
IT 640,917                   288,886                   1,156,750                1,210,500                980,807                   4,442,475                8,720,335                         

-                               -                                        
Block Funding -                               -                                        

One-time studies/projects -                               -                                        
Ongoing Programs 776,652                   776,652                   801,652                   811,652                   811,652                   4,078,259                8,056,518                         

COR (Certificate of Recognition) 60,000                     -                               20,000                     -                               -                               40,000                     120,000                            
Strategic & Corporate Planning 100,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               100,000                            

Corporate Climate Action Implementation 117,158                   150,000                   -                               267,158                            
Environmental Strategy Implementation 193,146                   -                               193,146                            

-                               -                                        
Total Expended 6,686,498$              5,292,848$              4,875,992$              4,140,192$              5,502,680$              19,447,966$            45,946,177$                     
Closing Balance (0)$                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             (0)$                                    

Each year an amount is transferred from the annual budget to fund various capital projects.  These funds are unrestricted and can be used for any capital project. Approximately 15% 
of the City's annual tax levy is transferred to capital projects or to fund capital reserves.

Page 29



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
TAX SALE LAND Principal

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance (unappropriated) 31,387,774$            27,937,774              27,987,774$            71,510,524$            91,560,524$            91,610,524$            31,387,774$                     

-                                    
Loan repayments: -                               -                                    
-AT Field  User Fee rpmt 50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     250,000                   500,000                            

-                               -                                    
Proceeds of Sale: 62,375,000              -                               62,375,000                       
-Land Sales - LL -                               -                                    
-Land Sales - Alder Str -                           22,347,750              -                               22,347,750                       

Loans/Transfers
-Transfer to CAF HJFUND (20,000,000)             20,000,000              -                               -                                    
-Land Sale (21,250,000)             -                               (21,250,000)                      

Available Balance 31,437,774$            27,987,774$            71,510,524$            91,560,524$            91,610,524$            91,860,524$            95,360,524$                     

-Purchases
Strategic Land Purchase 3,500,000                -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               3,500,000                         
Other Sites -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

3,500,000$              -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             3,500,000$                       

-Other Withdrawals - Capital Funding
-                               -                                        

-$                             -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                                      

Total Expenditures 3,500,000$              -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             3,500,000$                       

Closing Balance 27,937,774$            27,987,774$            71,510,524$            91,560,524$            91,610,524$            91,860,524$            91,860,524$                     

TAX SALE LANDS interest

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 1,572,880$              889,883                   838,883                   1,492,474                2,446,066                13,752,829$            20,993,015$                     

Transfer from Annual -                               116,670                   3,795                       -                               120,465                            
Transfer to General (704,328)                  (1,685,148)               (10,199,914)             (12,589,390)                      
Interest for the year -                               20,514                     49,082                     297,085                   366,681                            
Available Balance 1,572,880                1,006,553                842,678                   808,661                   810,000                   3,850,000                8,890,772                         

Withdrawals
Streets and Transportation -                               -                                        

Pavement and Bridge Management 235,000                   250,000                   200,000                   200,000                   250,000                   1,050,000                2,185,000                         
Existing Infrastructure Safety Improvements 300,000                   390,000                   390,000                   390,000                   1,950,000                3,420,000                         

Sidewalk Infill & Reconstruction 118,970                   160,553                   169,678                   168,660                   170,000                   850,000                   1,637,862                         
Cloverley Access Management Adjustments 30,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               30,000                              

Living City Tree Planting Program 96,073                     -                               96,073                              
Great Streets - Corridor Studies 150,000                   -                               150,000                            

Pavement Management: Streets and Lanes 258,983                   596,000                   -                               854,983                            
-                               -                                        

1,189,026$              1,006,553$              759,678$                 758,660$                 810,000$                 3,850,000$              8,373,918$                       
Block Funding

Placemaking 40,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               40,000                              
CNV4ME - School The City Implementation 15,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               15,000                              

Community Engagement 160,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               160,000                            
Community Recreation Strategy 67,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               67,000                              

City Studio Partnership with CapU 30,000                     48,000                     50,000                     -                               -                               128,000                            
Environmental Strategy Implementation 31,854                     35,000                     -                               -                               -                               66,854                              
Exempt Compensation Market Review 40,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               40,000                              

383,854$                 -$                             83,000$                   50,000$                   -$                             -$                             516,854$                          

Total Expended 1,572,880$              1,006,553$              842,678$                 808,660$                 810,000$                 3,850,000$              8,890,772$                       

Closing Balance -$                             (0)$                           -$                             0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                                     

The Tax Sale Lands Fund is made up of the proceeds of sale of all lands sold by the City which originally became City property though non-payment of taxes.  Most of this land came to 
the City in the 1930’s, during the Great Depression. The balance in the Tax Sale Land reserve is used to invest in projects that have a prospective rate of return equal 
to or greater than the City’s benchmark rate of return; to invest in infrastructure and land management, in order to enhanc e the marketability and increase the value of marketed lands, or 
to invest in the purchase of land assets to be held by the City.  By long-standing Council policy, Tax Sale Land principal is not used to fund depreciable assets such as civic buildings, 
infrastructure or equipment.  

The previous year’s earned interest of the Tax Sales Land reserve is unrestricted and is used to fund various projects.  Along with the Annual Budget tax levy, this is the major 
unrestricted source that the City has for funding capital projects. 

Page 30



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
CIVIC AMENITY - HARRY JEROME FUND

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 10,540,058$            -                           -$                             69,145,344$            65,359,344$            14,065,389$            10,540,058$                     
Completed Projects -                                        
Early Appropriations -                               -                                        
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Amenity Levy 2,600,000                2,600,000                2,600,000                2,600,000                2,600,000                -                               13,000,000                       
Land lease - HJNL 68,434,861              87,587,444              37,296,845              -                               193,319,150                     
Transfer from TSL -                               -                                        
MFA debt 90,000,000              (90,000,000)             -                               -                                        
Interest for the year -                               -                                        

Available Balance 13,140,058$            161,034,861$          90,187,444$            71,745,344$            15,256,189$            14,065,389$            216,859,208$                   

Withdrawals
Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre 10,825,058              161,034,861            21,042,100              6,386,000                1,190,800                -                               200,478,819                     

Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands Site Development Plan 150,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               150,000                            
HJ Precinct Related Relocation Expenses 2,165,000                -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               2,165,000                         

-                               -                                        
Total Expended 13,140,058              161,034,861            21,042,100              6,386,000                1,190,800                -                               202,793,819                     

Closing Balance -$                             -$                             69,145,344$            65,359,344$            14,065,389$            14,065,389$            14,065,389$                     

The CAF HJF is specifically dedicated to fund Harry Jerome Recreation Centre and Lands capital projects . In 2013, Council approved a 1% tax rate increase to be set aside for  the Harry 
Jerome Recreation Centre project. This provided $400,000 in annual funding for this purpose. Council approved similar increases in folllowing years bringing the annual amount set aside 
for the Harry Jerome Recreation Project to $2.6million.

Page 31



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
CIVIC AMENITY

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 8,877,563$              3,738,030                -$                             23,514,643$            11,465,077$            8,336,642$              8,877,563$                       
Completed Projects 204,000                   204,000                            
Early Appropriations -                                        
Contributions:  
 - CAC estimate 200,000                   800,000                   800,000                   800,000                   4,000,000                6,600,000                         
 - Land sales - Lower Lonsdale -                               -                                        
 - Land sales - Alder Str 7,449,250                -                               -                               7,449,250                         
 - Centennial Seat Surcharge 35,000                     35,000                     35,000                     35,000                     35,000                     175,000                   350,000                            
 - West 23rd 1,680,000                -                               1,680,000                         
 - Northmount Medical 5,147,558                -                               5,147,558                         
Land Sale -                           21,250,000              -                           -                               21,250,000                       
1% of LL Land Sales to Public Art -                           -                           -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 108,875                   684,893                   333,934                   242,815                   -                               1,370,516                         

Available Balance 14,372,996$            5,653,030$              30,219,143$            24,683,577$            12,542,892$            12,511,642$            52,928,888$                     
Withdrawals
Buildings

Shipyard Commons Site Improvements 85,000                     50,000                     50,000                     -                               -                               -                               185,000                            
Shipyard Commons Branding and Marketing Start Up 25,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               25,000                              

Lonsdale Quay Public Realm -                               480,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               480,000                            
2025 New North Shore Neighborhood House Facility -                               -                               -                               -                               5,456,892                5,456,892                         

Burrard Dry Dock Electrical Building -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
PGE Station Provision -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

Child Care Capital Program (City Facilities) 2,500,000                2,500,000                -                               -                               -                               -                               5,000,000                         
Civic Centre 13th Street Forecourt Improvements 100,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               100,000                            

-                               -                                        
Parks -                               -                                        

Temporary Dog Off leash Facilities 200,000                   -                               200,000                            

Mahon Park Beach Volleyball 35,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               35,000                              
Hamersley Park Improvements 353,500                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               353,500                            

Waterfront Park Master Plan & Implementation 218,373                   -                               2,525,000                2,525,000                -                               -                               5,268,373                         
1600 Eastern Avenue Park -                               555,500                   -                               -                               -                               -                               555,500                            

Green Necklace Outdoor Fitness Equipment Stations -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
Victoria Park Washroom -                               200,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               200,000                            

St. Andrews Park Washrooms -                               101,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               101,000                            
Sunrise Park Trail Improvements -                               -                               126,250                   -                               -                               -                               126,250                            

Casano Park Trail & Habitat Improvements -                               -                               -                               400,000                   -                               -                               400,000                            
Park Picnic Shelters -                               -                               -                               -                               850,000                   -                               850,000                            

High Place Park Development -                               -                               -                               -                               250,000                   -                               250,000                            
Gravel Sports Field Turf Conversion -                               -                               -                               -                               200,000                   1,700,000                1,900,000                         

Public School Playground Funding 150,000 150,000 150,000 37,500 -                               -                               487,500                            
-                               -                                        
-                               -                                        

Streets and Transportation -                               -                                        
New Sidewalks to Complete Pedestrian Network 151,500                   252,500                   252,500                   252,500                   1,262,500                2,171,500                         

New Sidewalks on East side St Andrews: Keith Road to 13th Str 220,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               220,000                            

New Pedestrian Crossing Facilities 300,000                   685,000                   745,000                   670,000                   500,000                   1,500,000                4,400,000                         
New Sidewalks 400 Block E 2nd Street -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

Active Transportation Wayfinding Program 150,000                   16,030                     30,000                     30,000                     30,000                     150,000                   406,030                            
Semisch Greenway (W3rd to Semisch Park) 50,500                     151,500                   -                               -                               -                               -                               202,000                            

Priority Mobility Network Improvements 850,000                   227,250                   883,750                   2,146,250                656,500                   -                               4,763,750                         

East Keith Road Multi-Modal Corridor Improvements, East Grand to 
Brooksbank -                               -                               -                               300,000                   -                               -                               300,000                            

Covered Bike Shelter & Secured Bike Parking -                               -                               25,000                     50,000                     50,000                     40,000                     165,000                            
Micro Mobility (E-Bike Docking) 50,000                     50,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               100,000                            

Active & Safe Routes to School Implementation 200,000                   -                               50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     250,000                   600,000                            
Casano Loutet Overpass 847,726                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               847,726                            

Upper Levels Greenway - Lonsdale to Lynn Valley Road                       50,500                              -                                -                                -                                -   -                               50,500                              
Upper Levels Greenway - Lonsdale to Westview                              -                                -                       505,000                              -                                -   -                               505,000                            

-                               -                                        
Queensbury Avenue Greenway Connection                              -                                -                                -                      350,000                              -   -                               350,000                            

Installation of Accessible Pedestrian Signal Units                       35,000                       35,000                       35,000                      35,000                       35,000 175,000                   350,000                            
Pedestrian Scale Lighting - Green Necklace                     250,000                              -                                -                                -   -                               250,000                            

Pedestrian and Roadway Lighting Implementation                     151,500                       26,750                     202,000                    227,250                     227,250 562,250                   1,397,000                         
City Transit Shelter Program -                           -                           40,000                     20,000                     20,000                     40,000                     120,000                            

Moodyville Traffic Signals 121,200                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                               121,200                            
New Street Activation 25,000                     75,000                     75,000                     75,000                     75,000                     375,000                   700,000                            

Sidewalk Patios - Lower Lonsdale -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                               -                                        

Mosquito Creek Bridge 2,390,167                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                               2,390,167                         

Marine Drive Bridge Replacement over Mackay Creek -                           -                           -                           1,010,000                -                           -                               1,010,000                         
Lonsdale Corridor Transit & Safety Improvements (Esplanade to 

29th) -                               -                               -                               1,400,000                -                               -                               1,400,000                         
Marine-Main Corridor Improvements -                               350,000                   -                               2,600,000                -                               -                               2,950,000                         

Pedestrian Scale Lighting - Green Necklace -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
Esplanade Complete Streets 100,000                   -                               100,000                            
Central Lonsdale Wayfinding 30,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               30,000                              

New Traffic Signals 995,000                   1,010,000                1,040,000                1,010,000                1,000,000                5,055,000                         
Total Expended 10,634,966              5,653,030                6,704,500                13,218,500              4,206,250                12,511,642              52,928,888                       

Closing Balance 3,738,030$              -$                             23,514,643$            11,465,077$            8,336,642$              -$                             -$                                      

The City also owns land that was acquired through purchase, i.e., not through tax defaults. Such property is considered as being a non-Tax Sale land property. The proceeds of sale are 
placed in the City Amenity fund.  The CAF is specifically dedicated to fund capital projects which will enhance the use and enjoyment of the City by members of  the public, such as parks, 
recreation centers, libraries, plazas, and other community amenities.  

Page 32



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
LOWER LONSDALE AMENITY

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 8,877$                     -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             8,877$                              
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Other      -                               -                                        
- Completed Projects -                               -                                        
 Interest for the year -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

Available Balance 8,877$                     -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             8,877$                              
Withdrawals

Waterfront Park Master Plan & Implementation 8,877                       8,877                                
Total Expended 8,877$                     -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             8,877$                              

Closing Balance -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                                    

MARINE DRIVE AMENITY

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 9,833$                     -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             9,833$                              

-                               -                                        
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 Interest for the year -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

Available Balance 9,833$                     -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             9,833$                              
Withdrawals

-                               -                                        
Mosquito Creek Bridge 9,833                       -                               9,833                                

Closing Balance -$                             -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                                      

GENERAL BUILDING

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 86,505$                   (0)                             (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           86,505$                            
 - Budgeted -                               -                           -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
Completed projects -                               -                                        
 Interest for the year (0)                             (0)                             (0)                             (0)                             (0)                             (0)                                      

Available Balance 86,505$                   (0)                             (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (1)$                           86,504$                            
Withdrawals

-                               -                                        
Capital Maintenance 86,505                     -                               86,505                              

-                               -                                        
Total Expended 86,505$                   -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             86,505$                            

Closing Balance (0)$                           (0)                             (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (1)$                           (1)$                                    

JUSTICE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 43,486$                   4,346                       0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                            43,486$                            
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Completed projects -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 0                              0                              0                              0                              0                                       

Available Balance 43,486$                   4,346                       0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                            43,486$                            
Withdrawals

-                               -                                        
GB Building 39,140                     4,346                       -                               43,486                              

-                               -                                        
Total Expended 39,140$                   4,346$                     -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             43,486$                            

Closing Balance 4,346$                     0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                                     

The LLAF was originally created to set aside funds from non-Tax Sale land or density transfer in Lower Lonsdale. Funding from this source was to be used with respect to capital 
projects in the Lower Lonsdale area relating to the provision of affordable and adaptable rental housing, a community arts gallery, a photographic and media arts gallery, a museum, a 
150-200 seat theatre, a multi-purpose activity centre, and other Lower Lonsdale amenities. In 2011, Council adopted a bylaw that requires all land sales to be consolidated into one 
reserve, the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund. While no new funding will be set aside in the LLAF, funds that are in place will be used toward the construction of Lower Lonsdale amenities 
as it was originally intended. 

This reserve originally aimed to set aside proceeds from land sales of non-Tax Sale properties in the Marine Drive area for the purpose of funding projects in the area. In 2011, Council 
adopted a bylaw that requires all land sales to be consolidated into one reserve, the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund. While no new funding will be set aside in this reserve, funds that are in 
place will be used toward  projects in the Marine Drive area.

The General Building Reserve is used for capital building maintenance, renovation, and building replacement. The City owns in excess of $100m in buildings.  The GB reserve was 
established in 1995 to begin the process of setting aside sufficient funds to replace these buildings as required.  

The Justice Administration Building Reserve is used for capital building maintenance, renovation, and  replacement of the Gerry Brewer Building.  Because the Justice Administration 
(Gerry Brewer) Building is co-owned with the District of North Vancouver, it has its own replacement reserve.  

Page 33



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
INFRASTRUCTURE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 312,108$                 -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             312,108$                          
Gas Tax 313,000                   313,000                   313,000                   313,000                   313,000                   1,565,000                3,130,000                         
MRN Capital 300,000                   300,000                   300,000                   300,000                   -                               1,200,000                         
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Budgeted -                               -                                        
 - Levy -                               -                               -                               -                                        
 Interest for the year -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

Available Balance 925,108$                 613,000                   613,000$                 613,000$                 313,000$                 1,565,000$              4,642,108$                       

Withdrawals
Pavement Management: Streets and Lanes 925,108                   613,000                   613,000                   613,000                   313,000                   1,565,000                4,642,108                         

-                               -                                        
Total Expended 925,108$                 613,000$                 613,000$                 613,000$                 313,000$                 1,565,000$              4,642,108                         

Closing Balance -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                                      

GENERAL EQUIPMENT

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 48,277$                   6,789                       (0)$                           7,220$                     14,863$                   537$                        48,277$                            
Completed Projects -                               -                                        
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Budgeted -                               -                           -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
 - Eq. Sales proceeds 6,250                       6,710                       7,010                       7,210                       7,310                       36,550                     71,040                              

-                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 230                          210                          433                          3,510                       4,383                                

Available Balance 54,757$                   13,499                     7,220$                     14,863$                   22,173$                   40,596$                   123,699$                          
-                               -                                        

Withdrawals      -                               -                                        
Furniture and Equipment 47,968                     13,499                     21,636                     -                               83,103                              

Total Expended 47,968                     13,499                     -                               -                               21,636                     -                               83,103                              

Closing Balance 6,789$                     (0)                             7,220$                     14,863$                   537$                        40,596$                   40,596$                            

FIRE EQUIPMENT

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 685,198$                 (0)                             (0)$                           139,050$                 4,171$                     292,697$                 685,198$                          
Closed projects -                               -                                        
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Budgeted -                               1,690,000                350,000                   455,000                   350,000                   2,573,239                5,418,239                         
 Interest for the year 4,050                       121                          8,525                       22,514                     35,211                              

Available Balance 685,198$                 1,690,000                354,050$                 594,171$                 362,697$                 2,888,450$              6,138,648$                       
Withdrawals

Equipment and Vehicles 685,198                   1,690,000                215,000                   590,000                   70,000                     2,770,000                6,020,198                         
-                               -                                        
-                               -                                        

Closing Balance (0)$                           (0)$                           139,050$                 4,171$                     292,697$                 118,450$                 118,450$                          

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 62,686$                   -                           -$                             8,718$                     17,697$                   5,401$                     62,686$                            
Closed Projects -                               -                                        
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Budgeted 8,464                       8,464                       8,464                       8,464                       42,320                     76,176                              

-                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 254                          515                          157                          4,825                       5,751                                

Available Balance 62,686$                   8,464                       8,718$                     17,697$                   26,319$                   52,545$                   144,614$                          
Withdrawals

-                               -                                        
User Device Replacements 62,686                     8,464                       20,918                     -                               92,068                              

-                               -                                        
Closing Balance -$                             -$                             8,718$                     17,697$                   5,401$                     52,545$                   52,545$                            

The Infrastructure Reserve funds engineering infrastructure replacement projects such as those included in the category “Structures”.  A long term goal for the fund would be to more 
closely match the amount transferred each year to this reserve from the annual budget with the City’s infrastructure maintenance requirements.  This would be achievable only over 
many years, because the value of the required infrastructure reinvestment is high.

Used for general equipment and machinery replacement including office equipment, and pool and bylaw vehicles.

Used for fire equipment, and replacement and upgrades.

Used for computer equipment replacement and upgrades.

Page 34



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
ENGINEERING EQUIPMENT
Rate factor

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 1,396,708$              1,368,570                919,347$                 708,997$                 508,817$                 518,932$                 1,396,708$                       
Closed Projects -                               -                                        

-                               -                                        
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Budgeted 400,000                   400,000                   450,000                   450,000                   500,000                   3,369,077                5,569,077                         

-                                        
 Interest for the year 39,861                     26,777                     20,650                     14,820                     15,115                     70,992                     188,215                            

Available Balance 1,836,570$              1,795,347                1,389,997$              1,173,817$              1,023,932$              3,959,000$              7,154,000$                       
Withdrawals

Vehicles 468,000                   876,000                   681,000                   665,000                   505,000                   3,709,000                6,904,000                         
-                               -                                        

Closing Balance 1,368,570$              919,347$                 708,997$                 508,817$                 518,932$                 250,000$                 250,000$                          

LOCAL AREA SERVICES

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 721,163$                 227,798                   234,632$                 241,671$                 248,921$                 256,389$                 721,163$                          

-                               -                                        
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Levies from Property Owners -                               -                                        
 - Other      -                               -                                        

-                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 6,635                       6,834                       7,039                       7,250.12                  7,468                       40,836                     76,062                              

Available Balance 727,798$                 234,632$                 241,671$                 248,921$                 256,389$                 297,225$                 797,225$                          
Withdrawals

City Share of LAS Projects 500,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               500,000                            
-                               -                                        
-                               -                                        

Closing Balance 227,798$                 234,632                   241,671$                 248,921$                 256,389$                 297,225$                 297,225$                          

PARKING

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 145,178$                 149,534                   154,020$                 158,640$                 163,399$                 168,300$                 145,178$                          
Completed Projects
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Pay in lieu of Parking      -                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 4,355                       4,486                       4,621                       4,759                       4,902                       26,806                     49,929                              

Available Balance 149,534$                 154,020                   158,640$                 163,399$                 168,300$                 195,105$                 195,107$                          
Withdrawals

-                               -                                        
-                               -                                        

Total Expended -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                                      

Closing Balance 149,534$                 154,020                   158,640$                 163,399$                 168,300$                 195,105$                 195,107$                          

Used for engineering equipment and vehicle replacement.  Engineering has a fleet of several vehicles.  Contributions to the Reserve are based on the hourly rates charged to the 
different projects and programs using the vehicles.

Local Area Services (LAS) Projects, formerly called Local Improvement Projects, are jointly funded by the City and the benefiting property owner.  The Community Charter requires that 
LAS Reserve funds be used only to fund the city share of new local area services projects. 

This reserve has been funded from parking revenues from 1998-2002.  Moneys in the fund and any interest thereon shall be expended   for  purchase, acquisition,
construction, installation or improvement of new and existing on and off-street parking spaces.

Page 35



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
PARKS DCC

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 13,363,426$            3,809,390                4,201,256$              2,158,629$              102,618$                 1,791,549$              13,363,426$                     
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Lease revenue 15 Chesterfield -                               -                                        
 - Levy 1,800,000                1,800,000                1,800,000                1,800,000                1,800,000                9,000,000                18,000,000                       
 - Completed projects -                               -                                        
Loan to Transportation DCC (896,740)                  (243,500)                  (811,750)                  (1,384,000)               (163,250)                  -                               (3,499,240)                        
Repayment from Transportation DCC -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               8,853,820                8,853,820                         
 Interest for the year 110,953                   122,367                   62,873                     2,989                       52,181                     1,597,366                1,948,729                         

Available Balance 14,377,640$            5,488,256$              5,252,379$              2,577,618$              1,791,549$              21,242,735$            38,666,735$                     
Withdrawals

New Parks 9,900,000                -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               9,900,000                         
Hamersley Park Improvements  - DCC 346,500                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                               346,500                            

Waterfront Park Master Plan & Implementation - DCC 222,750                   -                           2,475,000                2,475,000                -                           -                               5,172,750                         
1600 Eastern Avenue Park - DCC -                           544,500                   -                           -                           -                           -                               544,500                            

St. Andrews Park Washrooms - DCC -                           99,000                     -                           -                           -                           -                               99,000                              
Sunrise Park Trail Improvements - DCC -                           -                           123,750                   -                           -                           -                               123,750                            

Derek Inman Park Renovations - DCC -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           618,750                   618,750                            
Semisch Greenway (W3rd to Semisch Park) - DCC 49,500                     148,500                   -                           -                           -                           -                               198,000                            

Upper Levels Greenway - Lonsdale to Lynn Valley Road - DCC 49,500                     495,000                   -                           -                           -                           -                               544,500                            
Upper Levels Greenway - Lonsdale to Westview - DCC -                           -                           495,000                   -                           -                           -                               495,000                            

-                               -                                        
Total Expended 10,568,250$            1,287,000                3,093,750$              2,475,000$              -$                             618,750$                 18,042,750$                     

Closing Balance 3,809,390$              4,201,256                2,158,629$              102,618$                 1,791,549$              20,623,985$            20,623,985$                     

TRANSPORTATION  DCC

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance -$                             -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                                      
Levy 350,000                   400,000                   500,000                   750,000                   1,000,000                10,363,570              13,363,570                       
Repayment to Parks DCC (8,853,820)               (8,853,820)                        
Loan from Parks DCC 896,740                   243,500                   811,750                   1,384,000                163,250                   -                               3,499,240                         

Available Balance 1,246,740$              643,500$                 1,311,750$              2,134,000$              1,163,250$              1,509,750$              8,008,990$                       
Withdrawals

-                               -                                        
New Sidewalks to Complete Pedestrian Network-DCC 148,500                   247,500                   247,500                   247,500                   247,500                   495,000                   1,633,500                         

Casano Loutet Overpass - DCC                     830,940                              -                                -                                -                                -   -                               830,940                            
Pedestrian and Roadway Lighting Implementation - DCC                     148,500                     173,250                     198,000                    222,750                     222,750 445,500                   1,410,750                         

Moodyville Traffic Signals - DCC                     118,800                              -                                -                                -                                -   -                               118,800                            
Priority Mobility Network Improvements - DCC                              -                       222,750                     866,250                    673,750                     643,500 -                               2,406,250                         

Marine Drive Bridge Replacement over Mackay Creek - DCC                              -                                -                                -                      990,000                              -   -                               990,000                            
200 East 2nd Street - Parking & Streetscape improvements-DCC                              -                                -                                -                                -                         49,500 -                               49,500                              
100 East 2nd Street - Parking & Streetscape Improvements-DCC                              -                                -                                -                                -                                -   222,750                   222,750                            

100 East 1st Street - Streetscape Improvements - DCC                              -                                -                                -                                -                                -   346,500                   346,500                            
-                               -                                        

Closing Balance -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                                      

The Parks DCC fund can only be used to fund the purchase of parkland and certain specific parks improvements.  DCC’s in general are to be used to create capital works required due 
to growth, therefore the City plans to use these funds to provide parks and improvements in areas impacted by growth.

Transportation DCC’s are to be used for transportation projects required due to growth.

Page 36



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
AFFORDABLE HOUSING

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 4,401,911$              (0)                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             4,401,911$                       
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Levy -                           50,000                     200,000                   200,000                   200,000                   1,000,000                1,650,000                         
 - Northmount Medical 1,286,890                -                               1,286,890                         
 Interest for the year -                               -                                        

Available Balance 5,688,801$              50,000                     200,000$                 200,000$                 200,000$                 1,000,000$              7,338,801$                       

Withdrawals -                               -                                        
-                               -                                        

Projects & Grants 5,688,801                50,000                     200,000                   200,000                   200,000                   1,000,000                7,338,801                         
Total expended 5,688,801$              50,000                     200,000$                 200,000$                 200,000$                 1,000,000$              7,338,801$                       

Closing Balance (0)$                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                                      
 

SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORTATION

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 156,360$                 68,860                     0$                            7,725$                     15,682$                   23,877$                   156,360$                          
Contributions:   
- Annual -                               87,500                     87,500                     87,500                     87,500                     437,500                   787,500                            
 - Budgeted -                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 225                          457                          695                          44,789                     46,166                              

156,360$                 156,360$                 87,725$                   95,682$                   103,877$                 506,166$                 990,026$                          

Mobility Plan Implementation - Curbside Management -                           -                           80,000                     80,000                     80,000                     -                               240,000                            
Electric Vehicle Strategy Implementation 19,570                     -                               19,570                              

INSTPP Implementation (Previously known as North Shore 
Transportation Improvements) 87,500                     136,790                   -                               224,290                            

Total expended 87,500$                   156,360$                 80,000$                   80,000$                   80,000$                   -$                             483,860$                          

Closing Balance 68,860$                   0                              7,725$                     15,682$                   23,877$                   506,166$                 506,166$                          
 

PUBLIC ART

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 291,577$                 210,898                   217,225$                 223,742$                 230,454$                 237,367$                 291,577$                          
Closed Projects -                               -                                        
Contributions: -                               -                                        
 - Budgeted -                               85,000                     85,000                     85,000                     85,000                     425,000                   765,000                            
Transfer from TSL -                               -                           -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

-                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 6,143                       6,327                       6,517                       6,712                       6,914                       37,806                     70,419                              

Available Balance 297,720$                 302,225                   308,742$                 315,454$                 322,367$                 700,174$                 1,126,996$                       
Withdrawals

Public Art Projects -                               85,000                     85,000                     85,000                     85,000                     425,000                   765,000                            
Public Art - 1% of LL Land Sales 86,822                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               86,822                              

Total expended 86,822$                   85,000$                   85,000$                   85,000$                   85,000$                   425,000$                 851,822$                          

Closing Balance 210,898$                 217,225$                 223,742$                 230,454$                 237,367$                 275,174$                 275,174$                          

The Affordable Housing Reserve  had been funded by a contribution from taxes collected set at $260,000 per year - this was suspended once the reserve fund balance exceeded 
$2.5M.  As of the adoption of the revised Community Benefits Policy in 2015, the reserve is funded  by a 20% allocation of the Community Benefit Cash Contributions received by the 
City.  The fund is to be used for the provision of new non-market and special needs housing units.

Created in 2008, The Sustainable Transportation Reserve Fund sets aside funding for the implementation of sustainable transportation initiatives included in the City’s 
Transportation Plan.

This reserve is funded by a contribution from  taxes collected, currently set at $85,000 annually.  It is used to fund public art projects as recommended to Council by the Public Art 
program Steering Committee.

Page 37



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
OTHER FUNDING SOURCES

Cemetery Development Fund

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 1,107,600$              809,828                   731,123$                 650,056$                 566,558$                 480,555$                 1,107,600$                       

Contributions:

 Interest for the year 27,228                     21,295                     18,934                     16,501.69                13,997                     29,699                     127,654                            
Available Balance 1,134,828$              831,123                   750,056$                 666,558$                 580,555$                 510,254$                 1,235,254$                       

Withdrawals
Cemetery Accessible Public Restroom and Staff Facility 125,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               125,000                            

Cemetery Provision 200,000                   100,000                   100,000                   100,000                   100,000                   500,000                   1,100,000                         
Closing Balance 809,828$                 731,123$                 650,056$                 566,558$                 480,555$                 10,254$                   135,254$                          

Child Care Capital Improvement Fund

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 9,323$                     -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             9,323$                              

Contributions:

Available Balance 9,323$                     -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             9,323$                              

Child Care Capital Improvement Fund 9,323                       -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               9,323                                
-                               -                                        

Closing Balance -$                             -                           -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                                      

Carbon Fund

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 117,192$                 2,142                       (0)$                           (0)$                           90,000$                   180,000$                 117,192$                          
Early Appropriations
Contributions:  
CARIP 25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     125,001                   250,001                            
Annual Budget -                               65,000                     65,000                     65,000                     65,000                     325,001                   585,001                            

Available Balance 142,192$                 92,142                     90,000$                   90,000$                   180,000$                 630,002$                 952,194$                          
Withdrawals

-                               -                                        
Environmental Strategy Implementation 90,000 -                               -                               -                               90,000                              

Electric Vehicle Strategy Implementation 140,050                   92,142                     -                               -                               -                               -                               232,192                            
Closing Balance 2,142$                     (0)$                           (0)$                           90,000$                   180,000$                 630,002$                 630,002$                          

Heritage Reserve

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 92,053$                   2,569                       2,646$                     2,725$                     2,807$                     2,891$                     92,053$                            

Contributions:
 Interest for the year 75                            77                            79                            82                            84                            447                          760                                   

Available Balance 92,128$                   2,646                       2,725$                     2,807$                     2,891$                     3,338$                     92,813$                            

Withdrawals -                               -                                        
Heritage Reserve Fund 89,559                     -                               89,559                              

Closing Balance 2,569$                     2,646$                     2,725$                     2,807$                     2,891$                     3,338$                     3,254$                              

Environmental Stewardship Fund

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 32,842$                   (0)                             (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           32,842$                            
Contributions:

-                               -                                        
 Interest for the year 

Available Balance 32,842$                   (0)                             (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           32,842$                            

Withdrawals
Corporate Climate Action Implementation 32,842                     -                               -                               -                               32,842                              

Closing Balance (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                                    

The Cemetery Development Fund is a non-statutory reserve which is used to fund capital improvement projects in the city’s cemetery.  It is generally funded by net cemetery revenues.  
In 2004, the Cemetery Fund also received a contribution of $954,000 from the GVRD because of the impact of the Region’s watermain project on the cemetery

The Child Care Capital Improvement Fund  is a non-statutory reserve used to provide grants to child care services in the City. It was created in 1997 with a $150,000 sale of density 
transfer from the old library site to a developers. Over the years, it has provided grants to Heywood House, St. Andrew's Daycare, Mahon Park Child Care, North Shore Neighbourhood 
House and Lonsdale Creek Daycare.

The  Carbon Fund is to be used for greenhouse gas emissions reducing initiatives within the City of North Vancouver, such as sustainable transportation initiatives, building energy 
retrofits, solar hot water, geo-exchange, fleet conversion, urban forestry and other emissions-reducing improvements. Funding is provided by  an annual budget contribution as well as 
the Climate Action Revenue Incentive Program (CARIP).

The Heritage Reserve Fund was established in 1994 and received additional funding from the sale of Hammersley House in 1998. The purpose of the Reserve Fund is to fund projects 
on an as-needed basis that support the City's Heritage Program and goals in the Official Community Plan related to the conservation of heritage resources on the Heritage Register. 

Fund originated from unused projects(s) related to Environmental cleanup, and has been balanced and maintained by the City since.

Page 38



  2020-2029 PROJECT PLAN

RESERVES AND OTHER FUNDING
-                                        

General Reserve

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029 Total
Opening Balance 4,225,108$              104,868                   (0)$                           0$                            (0)$                           2,522,367$              4,225,108$                       

2019 Revised Budget 208,400                   -                               208,400                            
Contributions: -                                        

Transfer from Annual Budget 667,302                   566,782                   2,986,513                4,171,108                3,463,620                45,810,294              57,665,619                       
Transfer from TSLI 704,328.33              1,685,147.68           10,199,914              12,589,390                       

 Waterfront Revenue 1,000,000                -                               1,000,000                         
Available Balance 6,100,810$              671,650$                 2,986,513$              4,875,436$              5,148,767$              58,532,574$            75,688,516$                     

-                               -                                        
Fire

Equipment and Vehicles 429,802                   -                               429,802                            
-                               -                                        

INSTPP Implementation (Previously known as North Shore 
Transportation Improvements) 87,500                     -                               87,500                              

Electric Vehicle Strategy Implementation 65,000                     -                               65,000                              
Public Art Projects 85,000                     -                               85,000                              

Land Acquisition 1% Municip Assist 100,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               100,000                            
Harry Jerome Complex - Major Repairs 200,000                   200,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               400,000                            

IT -                               -                                        
Enhanced VOIP Solutions 200,000 -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               200,000                            

Open Data & GIS 3D Modeling 120,000 100,000                   -                               -                               200,000                   420,000                            
Business Intelligence & Reporting 150,000 -                               -                               -                               -                               150,000                            

-                               -                                        
Buildings -                               -                                        

Civic Centre Addition Feasibility Study -                               -                               980,111                   -                               -                               980,111                            
Civic Centre Improvements 331,700                   21,400                     21,400                     21,400                     107,000                   502,900                            

Replacement of City Hall Single Glazed Windows 50,000                     600,000                   600,000                   -                               -                               1,250,000                         
Shipyards & Waterfront Operations (previously known as Central 

Waterfront Public Realm) 2,020,000                -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               2,020,000                         
2025 New North Shore Neighborhood House Facility 115,000                   6,000,000                6,115,000                         

Shipyard Commons Branding and Marketing Start Up -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

Streets, Traffic and Transportation -                               -                                        
Pavement Management: Streets and Lanes 115,909                   177,204                   1,387,000                1,387,000                1,687,000                8,435,000                13,189,113                       

Sidewalk Infill & Reconstruction 51,030                     9,447                       322                          1,340                       -                               62,138                              
Street Banner And Furnishing Program 60,000                     35,000                     60,000                     35,000                     60,000                     225,000                   475,000                            

Seasonal Decorations - Lonsdale Street Light Poles -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               85,000                     85,000                              

Esplanade Complete Streets -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
Transit Stop Improvements 65,000                     65,000                     65,000                     65,000                     325,000                   585,000                            

Bus Speed and Reliability 50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     250,000                   450,000                            
Traffic Signal Pre-Emption for Fire Emergency Vehicles 80,000                     80,000                     -                               -                               -                               160,000                            
Street Light and Traffic Signal Aging Pole Replacement 350,000                   100,000                   50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     500,000                   1,100,000                         

City-Wide LED Streetlight upgrade 150,000                   4,791                       -                               -                               -                               154,791                            
Street Lighting Central Management System -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        

Traffic Signal System Upgrades 250,000                   300,000                   300,000                   2,500,000                3,350,000                         
Priority Mobility Network Improvements 910,586                   -                               910,586                            

New Sidewalks to Complete Pedestrian Network-DCC 742,500                   742,500                            
Pedestrian and Roadway Lighting Implementation - DCC 668,250                   668,250                            

Planning and Development
Rapid Transit Planning Office -                               -                               150,000                   150,000                   150,000                   750,000                   1,200,000                         

INSTPP Implementation (Previously known as North Shore 
Transportation Improvements) 75,000                     75,000                     75,000                     375,000                   600,000                            

Community & School Active Travel Planning 175,000                   168,000                   100,000                   93,000                     479,000                   1,015,000                         
Mobility Plan 100,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               100,000                            

Great Streets - Corridor Studies -                               -                                        
Bicycle Master Plan Update & Bicycle Route Conceptual Design 90,000 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                               90,000                              

Block -                               -                                        
Land Use Studies - OCP Review -                               -                               -                               -                               50,000                     900,000                   950,000                            

Special Study, Site Planning and Development -                               -                               100,000                   100,000                   -                               -                               200,000                            
Environmental Strategy Implementation -                               -                                        

Review of Human Resources Policy Manual 120,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               120,000                            
Economic Development Strategy 70,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               70,000                              

City Plaza Programming 25,000                     25,000                     -                               -                               -                               50,000                              
Library Services for Lower Lonsdale -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                        
Child Minding for Council Meetings 25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     125,000                   225,000                            

Child Care Strategy Implementation Projects 40,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               40,000                              
Electric Vehicle Strategy Implementation -                               -                                        

E-Bike and Micromobility Coordinator 75,000                     25,000                     25,000                     -                               -                               125,000                            
Lonsdale Energy Corporation Renewable Energy Strategy 100,000                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               100,000                            

Where Matters 2.0 - Measuring Health Impacts of Built Environment 
and Policy 25,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               25,000                              

CleanBC Better Homes and Home Renovation Rebate Program - 
Municipal Top-Up Rebates 25,000                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               25,000                              

-                               -                                        
Total expended 5,995,941$              671,650$                 2,986,513$              4,875,437$              2,626,400$              22,666,750$            39,822,692$                     

Closing Balance 104,868$                 (0)$                           0$                            (0)$                           2,522,367$              35,865,824$            35,865,824$                     

Page 39



 

 
 
 

 
 

141 West 14th Street 
North Vancouver, BC 

V7M 1H9 
 

T. 604.985.7761 
F. 604.985.9417 

 
cnv.org 

info@cnv.org 



Attachment 2 to Report of April 14, 2020





















JANUARY 27, 2020 FINANCE DEPARTMENT

to Report of January 15, 2020







Freedom of Information and Protection of
Privacy Act







































FINANCE EXPENSES

2019 Annual
Budget

2020 Annual
Budget

MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT
Management and Support 2110 441,629 437,429 -4,200
Fin Budget Savings 2117 -15,000 -15,000 0

Total Management and Support Expenses 426,629 422,429 -4,200

PURCHASING & RISK MANAGEMENT
Purchasing 2130 258,600 260,600 2,000
Vehicle Fleet Admin 2160 34,800 34,900 100
Risk Liability and Insurance 2150 297,200 306,500 9,300

Total Purchasing & Risk Management Expenses 590,600 602,000 11,400

ACCOUNTING & TAXATION
Financial Accounting 2170 284,944 281,544 -3,400
Accounts Payable 2180 135,300 129,300 -6,000
Treasury 2192 81,000 81,000 0
Taxation 2302 597,200 596,600 -600

Total Accounting & Taxation Expenses 1,098,444 1,088,444 -10,000

FINANCIAL PLANNING & PAYROLL
Financial Planning 2400 529,500 573,500 44,000
Payroll 2200 332,500 336,900 4,400

Total Financial Planning & Payroll Expenses 862,000 910,400 48,400

2,977,673 3,023,273 45,600

FINANCE CORPORATE PROGRAMS
Finance Corporate 2120 -67,300 -49,800 17,500
Internal Controls 2195 153,900 153,900 0
Financial Plan Contingency 2401 1,000,000 1,000,000 0
Planning 2420 10,079,619 11,158,519 1,078,900
Council Grants 8401 50,000 50,000 0
Travel Grants 8410 2,500 2,500 0
Public Art Admin 8031 6,000 6,000 0
Public Art Maintenance 8032 20,000 20,000 0
Community Art Program 8040 15,000 15,000 0
District Energy Coordination 2450 25,000 25,000 0

11,284,719 12,381,119 1,096,400

14,262,392 15,404,392 1,142,000

Total Finance Corporate Programs Expenses

Total Finance Expenses

Variance
2020 Annual

to
2019 Annual

Total Finance Programs Expenses

 Programs 

Attachment A

Page 21







































Museum Budget City Share







NVRC Budget City Share *

- CNV contribution is displayed at 33.33% - change to 33.94% is represented in Base Rate Change item
- CNV contribution for Pinnacle Pool is 100%
- CNV contribution for Cultural Services is 50%
- CNV contribution for Building Utilities is by building ownership





(including Utlilities Staff)



Agencies
2019
Total

Funded 2020 Increase

2020
Total

Funded

2020 %
Increase
Funded

North Shore Neighbourhood House
(includes JBCC) 746,957$     14,939$         761,896$     2.0%

Silver Harbour Centre 161,670 3,233        164,903 2.0%

Family Services of the North Shore 50,955 1,019        51,974         2.0%

Capilano Community Services 82,008 1,640        83,648         2.0%

North Shore Community Resources 54,324 1,087        55,411         2.0%

North Shore Crisis Services 10,200 204           10,404         2.0%

North Shore Womens Centre 12,750 255           13,005         2.0%

Harvest Project 10,200 204           10,404         2.0%

North Shore Restorative Justice Society 35,700 714           36,414         2.0%

Total 1,164,764$ 23,295$         1,188,059$ 2.0%

% incr of
New Items Requested: base bgt
NS Family Service - Volunteer Initiative 22,836 44.8%
NS Family Service - Thrive Family Services 20,772 162.9%
NS Family Service - Child & Youth Counselling & Prevention 30,166 84.5%
Total New Items Requested 73,774$         

to Report of January 15, 2020



Document Number: 1855560



Document Number: 1855560

2020 New Item Requests – Summary

Agency 2020 
base

budget 
amount

2020 new 
item

request 
amount

Summary of request 



Document Number: 1855560

New Item Requests – Planning Department Recommendation 



Document Number: 1855560

Policy Review 



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Neighbourhood House – Lonsdale Youth Lounge (at Harry Jerome 
Community Centre) 

North Shore Neighbourhood House – Youth Outreach Workers 



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Neighbourhood House – Preteen Youth Worker

North Shore Neighbourhood House – Community Schools Program 



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Neighbourhood House – Young Parents Program



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Neighbourhood House – Edible Garden Project

North Shore Neighbourhood House –  Learning Together Mountainside (Mountainside 
Daycare)



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Neighbourhood House – John Braithwaite Community Centre (JBCC)

North Shore Neighbourhood House – Golden Circle



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Neighbourhood House – Operating



Document Number: 1855560

Silver Harbour Seniors Activity Centre 



Document Number: 1855560

Family Services of the North Shore 



Document Number: 1855560

Capilano Community Services 



Document Number: 1855560



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Community Resources 



Document Number: 1855560



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Crisis Services 



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Women’s Centre 



Document Number: 1855560

North Shore Restorative Justice 



Document Number: 1855560

Harvest Project 



AAdditional Funding / Investment Requested: 

1. Expanding Volunteer Engagement: $22,835.95
We want to thank you for recommending this increase in funding in last year’s budget cycle.

We are part of a caring and generous community where people of all ages are moved to pay it 
forward to support the community they love. We engaged over 300 volunteers last year but have 
been unable to expand our impact because we have not previously had a dedicated Agency wide 
Volunteer Coordinator in place. Volunteering is a very healthy activity and reduces isolation, 
increases positive connections, and deepens a sense of belonging in our community. It is also a 
cost saving measure that expands support to programs with minimal overall investment.  We 
expect to reach over 5000 people within 5 years through volunteer support. This new request is 
a pro-rated portion of the full time role – with other asks to the DNV, DWV and individual donors 
in process.  

2. TThrive Family Centre – Lonsdale Quay: $20,771.67
Our Thrive Family Centre at the Lonsdale Quay (formerly named I hope family centre) is a free,
drop-in program for parents with children from birth to six-years of age where they can play,
learn and connect with each other while enjoying child-led play, crafts, songs and stories.
Parents, grandparents, and caregivers come together and also receive support, resources, and
referrals to ensure all children have a healthy start in life. We run three sessions per week and
have a total of 2,847 visits per year (23 families per session) at our Lonsdale Quay location.

Positive / Negative Impact: Additional funding from the City of North Vancouver would ensure 
that we can continue to receive 1,898 visits from vulnerable parents each year. Without funding, 
we must reduce our sessions to 1x per week = 949 visits.  

3. Child and Youth Counselling: $30,165.74
Our experienced, Masters-level counsellors provided 2,483 sessions (pro-rate 45% to CNV) to
children and youth, aged 3-19, to help them heal and recover from abuse, trauma, and mental
health issues. Last year, 75% of these children and youth experienced a “meaningful and reliable
improvement” in their goal areas on the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale
(CAFAS). Children who participate in child and youth counselling learn new ways of coping,
understand how to reach out for help, and build on healthy ways to deal with life’s struggles.

One in 3 girls and 1 in 6 boys have experienced sexual abuse. Agency counsellors, in partnership 
with children and their trusted adults, work to relieve their distress, build resiliency, create safety 
plans, and nurture hope.  

**Note  on next two requests:: The United Way of the Lower Mainland has eliminated 
core funding for all community based Agencies. The impact on our organization = 
$181,000 in funding reductions per year directly impacting our Thrive Family Centres 
and Child and Youth Counselling (no or low fee) services. We are asking for increases 
to our CNV core funding as a result of these permanent reductions so that the 
impact on CNV residents is reduced. We are making the same funding request to all 
three Municipalities (pro-rated based on population served) and evaluating other 
funding opportunities as well. We explain the expected impacts below.



PPositive / Negative Impact: Additional funding from the City of North Vancouver would ensure 
that we can serve children at our current service level. Without funding for this program we will 
need to reduce our counselling staff by 1 person (from 3 currently). This would mean 21-25 
children and youth would lose their counsellor, be put back on the waitlist, and our overall 
waitlist would balloon to 30-40 children.  

We trust that presenting a clear picture of the opportunities and challenges we are facing 
honours our partnership and deepens the shared understanding we have of the needs of 
vulnerable people in the City of North Vancouver. We understand that there are always difficult 
choices to be made when trying to solve complex social problems. We continue to feel hopeful 
with the vision of the Mayor and Council of the City of North Vancouver and look forward to 
being a part of ongoing discussions to deepen our commitment to those who need us.  

Thank you again for your support over many decades and for working with us on our shared 
vision of a healthy community where everyone can live full and meaningful lives. 

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at jsfrench@familyservices.bc.ca 
or call 604-988-5281. 

Sincerely, 

Julia Staub-French 
Executive Director 
Family Services of the North Shore 

Encl.

Suite 203 – 1111 Lonsdale Ave. 

North Vancouver, BC 

V7M 2H4 
604.988.5281 

www.familyservices.bc.ca 

We recognize the continuing contribution of the City of North Vancouver, 

District of West Vancouver, District of North Vancouver and the financial 
assistance of the Province of British Columbia. 



Administration

Communications

Information Technology

Human Resources

rounded rounded

to Report of January 15, 2020



(81,200)     (40,700)     (40,500)     





















jpeters
FreeText
Presentation to Report of January 15, 2020�





Administration

Communications

Information 
Technology

Sub-Total Staffing 371,300 185,800 0.35%



Human Resources

Sub-Total Programs 172,800 166,400 0.32%

Sub-Total Major & Core Funded Agencies 20,800 20,800 0.04%







Attachment 3 to Report of April 14, 2020



































Building Size (Total Floor Area)







 













Standard Residential Service

Commercial Service

Recycling Service





U/l
CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

INFORMATION REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Ben Themens, Director of Finance

SUBJECT: COVID-19 IMPACT ON FINANCIAL PLANNING PROCESS

Date: April 15,2020 File No: <05-1610-01-0001/2020>

This report discusses the Financial Plan preparation process to date and anticipated 
COVID-19 related future adjustments.

Two of the purposes of the Financial Plan being presented to Council on April 20, 2020 
are to provide Council with the most up-to-date financial information and allow the City 
to set a tax rate in the coming weeks so that the City meets provincial statutory 
deadlines stipulating that a municipality must adopt its Financial Plan and set its tax 
rates by May 15th each year.

In order to meet statutory deadlines, the document does not address all potential 
COVID-19 related cash flow and funding gap issues that are currently being assessed 
by staff. The Plan considers the information submitted by the various City departments 
over the past several months. The review of all the projects and programs considered in 
the Plan is underway and specific departmental funding requests are and will continue 
to be assessed until the COVID-19 crisis has subsided.

The current version of the plan suggests some early adjustments that staff has readily 
identified such as cancellation of all proposed New Items and increase in the transfer to 
Project funding that were identified in earlier versions of the Plan. With those 
modifications the Plan proposes a tax increase of 2%. The plan also considers some 
but not all potential revenue shortfalls.

At this time, staff expects that further adjustments will be required during the coming 
year. While the current Plan will allow the City to meet regulatory deadlines and provide 
a tax rate increase that is reasonable and somewhat in line with past inflation, given 
current unpredictable circumstances, it is impossible to consider all potential impacts on 
expense and revenue that the COVID-19 pandemic will have on the City financial 
position.

Document Number: 1902972



REPORT: COVID-19 Impact on Financial Planning Process 
Date: April 15, 2020

It is anticipated that in the coming months, adjustments through the adoption by Council 
of revised budget(s) will be required. It should be noted that to maximize flexibility, with 
the exception of $2.6 million allocated to the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund for the Harry 
Jerome project, no funding has been allocated to statutory reserves this year. All 2020 
operating funding allocated to projects is allocated directly to a project or through the 
General Reserve. This means that a funding allocation (prior to appropriation) may be 
reversed if additional operating funding is required during the year.

It is important to consider that Cities cannot run operating budget deficits, i.e. 
municipalities must balance their budget each year. In light of the unprecedented 
COVID-19 pandemic and the social-isolation order, cities are experiencing two types of 
financial challenges: 1) funding gap arising from loss of revenue and 2) short to mid
term cash flow issues.

To address funding gap arising from significant reduction in variable revenues (e.g. 
parking, permits, facility rental, recreation programs), most cities will have to tap into 
rainy day reserves and/or repurpose special-purpose reserves that are not legally 
encumbered. That means programs/projects that are supposed to be funded from those 
special-purpose reserves may have to be postponed.

To address short to mid-term cash flow issues arising from delay in tax/utility fee 
collection, some cities have access to standing line of credit and short term borrowing 
from regional agencies such as MFABC. This can be done based on the expectation 
that cities can repay such loans when tax/fees are collected. Following Council’s 
approval, the City standing line of credit is being increased from $5 million to $35 
million. Arrangements with our banking institution are currently being completed. This 
line of credit is extremely important as the City is considering reducing the July tax 
payment penalty in order to reduce potential tax payment burden by making it more 
affordable to those who need to defer payment until September 2nd, 2020.

While in previous years, the approval of a financial plan was immediately followed by 
funding appropriation of a significant number of the projects included in the plan, this 
year, those appropriations will be delayed and phased over the coming months by 
appropriating funding for only essential projects as they are identified by staff. This 
should reduce financial pressure until information and forecasting allows a better 
assessment of potential COVID-19 related revenue and expenditure impacts.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Page 2 of 2


	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes�
	*3 MV Board in Brief
	Pres - CNV Coordination�
	Pres - NS Emergency Operations Centre�
	Pres - Scenario Planning and Impact Assessment�
	Pres - 2020 Financial Plan�
	4 2020 Financial Plan�
	4-1 Project Plan�
	4-2 Program Plan�
	4-3 Utility Rates�
	4-IR Impact on Financial Planning Process�




